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Message from the Managing Director & CFO

Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the performance overview and
strategic outlook of Anmol India Limited for the financial year 2024-25.

Over the past year, the global energy market continued to experience volatility
driven by geopolitical developments, evolving environmental policies, and
fluctuating demand. In this dynamic environment, our Company has stayed
resilient and responsive, leveraging its strengths in supply chain management,
customer relationships, and market intelligence to deliver consistent performance.

We are pleased to present the company’s full-year FY25 financial results, which, while reflecting short-
term challenges, underscore our long-term commitment to sustainable growth and operational resilience.
Revenue from Operations declined by 15.12%, from Rs. 1501.24 Cr in FY24 to Rs. 1274.26 Cr in FY25,
primarily due to external market conditions. However, the strength of our underlying business model and
the strategic steps we’ve taken have positioned us well for future recovery and growth. EBITDA stood at
Rs. 25.66 Cr in FY25, down from Rs. 41.89 Cr in FY23, a 38.74% decrease. Our Profit After Tax (PAT)
was Rs. 6.99 Cr, compared to Rs. 20.90 Cr in FY24, marking a 66.55% decline. Despite these figures, we
have taken decisive actions to optimize operations, improve cost efficiencies, and strengthen our core
capabilities. We remain fully focused on driving long-term value, and our disciplined financial management
ensures we are well-prepared to navigate challenges and capitalize on future opportunities. We deeply
value the continued trust of our stakeholders and are confident in our strategy for sustainable and profitable
growth.

We expanded our sourcing network, diversifying both domestic and international supply lines to ensure
reliable availability and competitive pricing for our clients. Our logistics capabilities, including port handling,
warehousing, and last-mile delivery, remained a key differentiator in a challenging market.

As coal continues to play a critical role in India’s energy mix, we are mindful of the growing emphasis on
responsible sourcing, environmental compliance, and carbon reduction. We are actively engaging with
suppliers and customers to promote cleaner, low-ash varieties of coal, and improving transparency and
traceability across our supply chain.

We are also aligning with government reforms and trade regulations, ensuring full compliance while
adapting swiftly to changes in import policies, GST norms, and coal pricing mechanisms.

We are optimistic about the opportunities that lie ahead. Demand from key industrial sectors remains
strong, and with the government’s focus on infrastructure and manufacturing, coal will continue to be a
vital input for years to come. At the same time, we are evaluating diversification into related energy
commodities, digitalizing trade operations, and exploring long-term partnerships to enhance supply
stability and customer service.

I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to our shareholders for your continued trust, to our clients
for your ongoing business, and to our employees for your dedication and professionalism. | also thank our
board of directors, partners, and government authorities for their support and guidance.

With your continued backing, Anmol India Limited is well-positioned to deliver sustainable growth and long-

term value.

Vijay Kumar
Managing Director & CFO
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Vision Values

Our vision has always been to welcome change. Courage: We shall embrace new ideas and

We at Anmol understand that nothing is constant business.
Other and have always had a dynamic approach Trust: We shall believe in our employees and
to our work. Our quick shift to foreign coal to keep stakeholders.
up with increasing demands nationwide was one Commitment: We shall stand by our promises

of the key moves that highlight this aspect of our and adhere to high standards of business.

behavior.

Culture
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Performing with Consistently Working across Working with Seizing new

enthusiasm and
energy

achieving goals
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 27" Annual General Meeting of the members of Anmol India Limited will
be held on Friday, the 26" day of September, 2025 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company
at 2" Floor, Aggar Nagar, Block B, Ludhiana, Punjab 141001 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

Item No.1 Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31! March, 2025 and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2 Re- Appointment of Director liable to retire by rotation:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Tilak Raj (DIN: 00574962), who retires by rotation and, being eligible,
offers herself for re-appointment.

Special Business

Item No. 3 Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for a period of five Financial Years

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force), and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and approval of the
Board of Directors, the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s
Harsh Goyal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries having Membership No. 3314 and Certificate
of Practice No. 2802, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five (5) financial years
commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, to conduct the Secretarial Audit as prescribed under the
Act and the Listing Regulations.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof)
be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of the Secretarial Auditor and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Anmol India Limited
Sd/-
Parabhjot Kaur
Company Secretary
Date: 30t August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana
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Notes:

1.

10.

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, setting out
the material facts in respect of the Special Business under Item No. 3 set out above is annexed hereto.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll instead of him, and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy form duly
completed and signed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies etc., must be supported by appropriate
resolutions/ authority, as applicable.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not
exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any
other person or shareholder.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to send to the Company, a certified Copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of meeting and ending
with conclusion of the meeting a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time
during the business hours of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act 2013, Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 19" September, 2025 to Friday, 26"
September, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
particulars, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact
numbers etc., to their Depository Participant. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then
be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and Big share Services
Pvt Ltd, Registrar and Transfer Agent, to provide efficient and better services.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in
the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

Members desiring of any information as Regards to the Accounts are requested to write to the registered
office of the Company at least 7 days before the date of the meeting so as to enable the management
to keep the information ready at the Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to sign at the place provided on the attendance slip and handover the same at
the entrance of the Meeting.

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, service of notice/ documents to the shareholders can be made through
electronic mode, provided the Company has obtained the e-mail address(es) of the shareholder(s). Also,
the shareholders who have not registered their E- Mail address for receiving the Balance Sheet etc. so
far are requested to send the same immediately.

All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement requiring the approval of the
Members at the meeting and other statutory registers shall be available for inspection by the Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on the working days between
10.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. except Sunday and holiday.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report and Notice of 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company along
with Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and instructions for e- voting are being sent to all the members whose
e- mail ID’s are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes.

The cut-off date for the purpose of determining the Members eligible for participation in remote e-voting
(e-voting from a place other than venue of the AGM) is 19" September, 2025. Please note that Members
can opt for only one mode of voting i.e., either by voting at the meeting or remote e-voting. If Members
opt for remote e-voting, then they should not vote at the Meeting and vice versa. However, once an e-
vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, such Member is not permitted to change it subsequently or
cast the vote again. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the date of the Meeting
can attend the Meeting and participate in the Meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there
under, the members are provided with the facility to cast their votes electronically, through e- voting
services provided by Central Depository Securities Limited (CDSL), on all resolutions set forth in this
notice. The Members whose names appearing in the Register of Members/ list of Beneficial owners as
on 19" September, 2025, are entitled to vote set forth in this Notice. The remote e- voting period will
commence at 10.00 A.M. on 23 September, 2025 and will end at 5.00 P.M. on 25" September, 2025.
The facility for voting shall be made available at the meeting and the members attending the meeting
who have not cast their vote by remote e- voting shall be able to vote at the meeting through ballot paper.
The Company has appointed M/s. Harsh Goyal & Associates to act as the Scrutinizer, for conducting
the scrutiny of the votes cast. The Members desiring to vote through electronic mode may refer to the
detailed procedure on e- voting given hereinafter.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report on or before 27" September, 2025 and the results of the same shall
be declared by the chairman within 48 hours of conclusion of AGM. The combined scrutinizer report on
e-voting and voting by ballots at AGM will be posted on the website of the company
www.anmolindialtd.com, besides being communicated to CDSL, Stock Exchanges viz. BSE Limited and
NSE Limited.

Members/Proxies are welcome at the AGM of the Company. However the Members/Proxies may please
note that no gifts/ gift coupons will be distributed at the AGM.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The voting period begins on 23 September, 2025 at 10.00 A.M. and will end at 5.00 P.M. on 25"
September, 2025. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date 19" September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation
44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in
respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities
in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and
passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.
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Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders
holding shares in demat mode.

@)

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-
voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type
shareholders

of

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi/Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi’/home/loginor
visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Myeasi.

After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option,
the user will be able to see e-voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so
that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

2)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account nhumber hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider nhame and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period.

4) For OTP based login you can click
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You
will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification
code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email
id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
(holding Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
securities in option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
demat mode) NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
login through can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
their Depository provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
Participants website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important Note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

securities in Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800 21 09911

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

securities in Demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
2499 7000

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

v) Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
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2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
Other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/ RTA
or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details o If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
OR DOB enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(Vi)
(Vi)

(viii)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

Click on the EVSN for Anmol India Limited on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

10
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e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address
viz;csprabhjot@anmolindialtd.com (desighated email address by company), if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Process for those shareholders whose Email/ Mobile No. are not registered with the Company/
Depositories.

1. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

2. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting.

3. In terms of Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015 (as amended vide circular dated December 12,2024), the shareholders whose
email id is not registered with the RTA/ Depository Participant, a letter including the web-link along
with the path to access the Annual Report of Company will be sent to the shareholders.

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Ordinary Resolution under Item No. 3

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment
of M/s Harsh Goyal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company
for a term of five years. The appointment is in compliance with the requirements under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, which mandate the audit of
secretarial and compliance records by a qualified professional.

The Board recommends this resolution for the approval of shareholders.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

11
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Details of Director seeking re- appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
[Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2)

Name of the Director Mr. Tilak Raj
Date of Birth 01/02/1963
Age 62 Years
Nationality Indian

Qualification

Under Graduate

Experience

He has been doing business for more than 45 years and
has been in the coal trade for more than 20 years. His
vast social network and business acumen have served
the company well. He is on Board of Company since 21st
August, 2000. A philanthropist and social worker, he is
also the president of Hindu Kanya College, Kapurthala.
He is also the head of the “customer care committee’ at
Capital Local Area Bank.

Terms and Conditions
of appointment or re- appointment

Re-Appointed as Non- Executive Director; liable to retire
by rotation

Date of Appointment on Board

21/08/2000

Shareholding in the Company

76,48,400 Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each

Relationships with other
Directors, Manager and
other Key Managerial Personnel

No. of Meetings of the Board attended
during the year

05

Directorships of other
Indian Companies

No Directorship in any other Indian Company

Membership/ Chairmanship
of Committees of other Companies

No Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of other
Companies

Membership/ Chairmanship
of Committees of this Company

No Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees of this
Company

Date: 30t August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana

By Order of the Board of Direc

tors

For Anmol India Limited

Sd/-

Parabhjot Kaur
Company Secretary

12
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Board’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

1. Financial Highlights

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 27" Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March,
2025.

(Rs. In Crores)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations (Net) 1274.26 1501.24
Other Income 9.79 13.02
Total Income 1284.05 1514.27
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 1254.56 1467.68
Less: Employment Benefit Expenses 1.46 1.31
Less: Other Expenses 2.37 3.39
Total Expenses 1258.39 1472.38
Earning before Financial charges, Depreciation &Amortization 25.66 41.89
and Taxes (EBITDA)

Add: Exceptional ltems - -
Less: Depreciation &Amortization 0.46 0.43
Less: Financial Charges 15.65 13.21
Earnings Before Tax 9.55 28.25
Less: Current Tax 2.59 7.40
Less: Deferred Tax (0.03) (0.05)
Less: Income Tax of Previous Years - -
Less: Interest on Income Tax/ TDS/ TCS/ Sales Tax - -
Earnings/Profit after taxes (PAT) 6.99 20.90
Earnings Per Share (Basic) (Rs.) 1.23 3.67
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (Rs.) 1.23 3.67

. Review of Business Operation

During the year under review, the Company reported a total income of ¥1,284.05 crores, reflecting a
decline of 15.20% compared to ¥1,514.27 crores in the previous financial year.

The net profit after tax also saw a significant drop, falling by over 66.55% to 6.99 crores in the current

year, as against ¥20.90 crores in the prior year.

Capital Structure

There is no change in the capital structure of the company during the year under review.

Dividend

Your directors have decided to conserve the resources for future requirements and hence do not

recommend any dividend for the year under review.

. Public Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public. There are no
outstanding/unclaimed deposits and hence no details as required under Rule 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) have

been provided.

. Transfer of Reserves

Profit after tax during the year has been transferred to Surplus under the head “Reserves & Surplus”

forming part of the Balance Sheet.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Extract of Annual Return

In accordance with section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company as
on 31t March, 2025 is available on the Company’'s website and can be assessed at
http://iwww.anmolindialtd.com.

Details of Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associate Companies

The company neither has any subsidiary or associate company nor has entered into any joint venture
with any other company.

Change in the Nature of Business
There is no change in the nature of business activities of the company during the year under review.
Detail of Directors or KMP Appointed/ Resigned during the year

Pursuant to provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Tilak Raj, Director retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

During the year under review Mr. Kapil was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company
w.e.f. 015t October, 2024 and Mrs. Ridhima Garg as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 015t
October, 2024.

Declaration Given by Independent Director

Your Company has received declarations from each of the independent director under Section 149
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/ she meets the criteria of Independence as laid down under
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Policy on Director’s Appointment and Policy on Remuneration

In adherence to section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company
regularly reviews the policy on Director's Appointment and Remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided
under section 178(3), based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. A copy of relevant palicy is placed on the company’s website atwww.anmolindialtd.com.

Committees of the Board

There are currently Four Committees of the Board, as follows:
Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

HroND =

Details of all the Committees along with their charters, composition are placed on the website of the
Company at www.anmolindialtd.com.

Management Discussion And Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under
Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) is presented in a separate section
forming part of this Annual Report Annexure-3.

Material Changes and Commitment, if any, affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the Company.
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16. Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR), Regulations 2015 and other
applicable acts, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance,
its committees and each director.

Evaluation of the Board and its Committees is based on various aspects of their functioning, such
as, adequacy of the constitution and the composition of the Board and its committees, matters
addressed in the meeting, processes followed at the meeting, Board’s focus, regulatory compliances
and corporate governance etc., are in place. Similarly, for evaluation of Individual Director’s
performance, various parameters like Director’'s profile, contribution n Board and Committee
meetings, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory compliances and
governance etc., are considered.

The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire Board,
excluding the Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board,
it determines whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever their respective
term expires. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

17. Classes of Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares of Face value of Rs.10/- each.

18. Meeting of the Board and Committees

During the financial year ended 315 March, 2025, the Board of Directors met 15 (Fifteen) times,
members of Audit Committee met 05 (Five) times, members of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee met 02 (Two) times, members of Stakeholders Relationship Committee met (4) four times
and members of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 04 (Four) times. Further details
w.r.t. Meeting of the Board of directors and its committee and their detailed briefs are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. For details, please refer Corporate Governance Report as
Annexure-1 forming part of this Annual Report.

19. Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance report attached as Annexure- 1 forms part of this report.

20. Director’s Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 315, 2025,the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

a) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31%t, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

b) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

c) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

d) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

15
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21.

22.

23.

24,

25,

26.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions that were entered into during the FY 2024-25 were on an arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related
party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the Company at large. For
further details, please refer Note No. 31 forming part of financial statements.

Significant/ Material Orders Passed by the Regulators

There are no significant/material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting
the going concern Status of your Company and its operations in future.

Auditor’s Report

The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and
therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation. The Auditor’'s Report
does not contain any qualification, reservation or any adverse remark and hence do not call for any
further comments.

Further, since the Auditors have not reported any instances involving Fraud in their Audit Report, the
particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013 have not provided.

Secretarial Auditor's Report

Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 given by M/s Harsh Goyal & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries has been provided in an Annexure-2 which forms part of the Director’'s Report.

The secretarial Auditor's Report for the financial year 2024-25, does not contain any qualification,
observation or adverse remarks and therefore, in the opinion of Directors, do not call for any further
comments.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

Your Company’s Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading covers all the Directors, senior
management personnel, persons forming part of promoter(s)/ promoter group(s) and such other
designated employees of the Company, who are expected to have access to unpolished price
sensitive information relating to the Company. The Directors, their relatives senior management
personnel, persons forming part of promoter(s)/ promoter group(s), designated employees etc. are
restricted in purchasing, selling and dealing in the shares of the Company while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information about the Company as well as during the course of trading
window.

The Board of Directors has approved and adopted the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and
report Trading by insiders. The Board has also approved the Code for fair disclosure in line with
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and the same can be accessed on Company’s
website www.anmolindialtd.com.

Particulars of Employees

There are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
Accordingly, details as required under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 have not been provided.

The details forming part of top ten employees in terms of remuneration of the Company is annexed
herewith as Annexure-5.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:
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27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

S. Name of Director/ KMP and Remunerati | Percentage Ratio of
No. | Designation on of Increase/ Remuneration of
Director/ Decrease in each director to
KMP for the | remuneration in | the Median
FY 2024-25 | the Financial Remuneration of
Year 2024-25 Employees
1 Mr. Vijay Kumar, Managing 30,00,000/- - 8.33:1
Director & CFO
2 Mr. Chakshu Goyal, 24,00,000/- - 6.67:1
Wholetime Director
3 Mrs. Parabhjot Kaur, 3,54,000/- 9.26% 0.98:1
Company Secretary

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2024-25 was Rs.
3,60,000/-.

Cost Auditor

As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant to section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to
time, maintenance of Cost records and appointment of cost Auditors are not applicable on your
Company.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, if
any, read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in the notes
to the Financial Statements.

Internal Financial Controls Related to Financial Statements

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented
by the Company are proper, adequate and operating effectively. The Board has accounting policies
which are in line with the Accounting Standards prescribed in the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 that continue to apply under Section 133 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable. These are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in India.

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors have formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance
with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 The policy provides for a
framework and process whereby concerns can be raised by its employees against any kind of
discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair practice being adopted against them.
More details on the vigil mechanism and the Whistle Blower Policy of your Company is placed on
the website of the Company at www.anmolindialtd.com.

Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

Company has not yet constituted any Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. However, The Company has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition
and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the

Rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.
Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment during the financial year 2024-25.
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32.

.33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

During the year under review, the following Independent Directors met on 24" March, 2025,
discussed and reviewed the performance of non-Independent Directors, the Board and the
Chairman of the Company and also to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Company management and the Board.

Sanjeev Kumar
Sumit Goswami
Bhupesh Goyal
Bhupinder Preet Kaur

HrODN =

Listing with Stock Exchanges

Your Company has paid Annual Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2024-25 to the BSE Limited &
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) where the Company’s Shares are listed.

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has been highly
conscious of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absorption at all operational
levels and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis.

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, the particulars as
prescribed under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies(
Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not
applicable to the Company and hence have not been provided.

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The Company has incurred an expenditure of Rs. 471.59/- Crores in foreign exchange during the
financial year 2024-2025 towards imports.

Corporate Social Responsibility Activity

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in compliance with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility),
Rules 2014. Your Company has been undertaking CSR activities on a significant scale, upholding
the belief that corporate have a special and continuing responsibility towards social development.

The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company www.anmolindialtd.com. During the
year, the Board has undertaken activities relating to corporate social responsibility as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as detailed in Annexure-4.

Disclosure under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code

Company has not made any application or any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 during the Financial Year 2024-25.

Disclosure of Valuation of Assets

The Company has not done any one time settlement and hence no information is provided on
difference between the amounts of the valuation executed at the time of one time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons
thereof.

Acknowledgement

Your Directors express their sincere appreciation for the cooperation and assistance received from
customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders, bankers, Government agencies, financial
institutions, regulatory bodies and other business constituents during the year under review. The
Directors express their sincere thanks to the lenders of the Company for continuous support during
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the year. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the
commitment displayed by all executives, officers and staff, resulting in the successful performance
of the Company during the year.

By Order of Board of Directors
For Anmol India Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chakshu Goyal Vijay Kumar
Whole Time Director Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 03126756 DIN: 00574900

Date: 30" August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana
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Annexure- 1
Corporate Governance Report

[Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

Company’s Corporate Governance Philosophy

Anmol India Limited is committed to good corporate governance and endeavors to implement the Code of
Corporate Governance in its true spirit. The philosophy of the Company on corporate governance is to
ensure transparency in all its operations, provide disclosures, and enhance stakeholder value without
compromising in any way on compliance with the laws and regulations. The Company believes that good
governance brings sustained corporate growth and long-term benefits for all its stakeholders.

Anmol India Limited believes in implementing corporate governance practices in letter and in spirit and has
adopted practices mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”) and has
established procedures and systems to remain compliant with it. This report provides the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI LODR as on 31st March, 2025.

The Board of Directors
Composition of Board

The composition of the Board represents an optimum mix of executives and non- executives directors
including women director and adequate number of independent directors having requisite skills and
expertise and is in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As on 31t March, 2025, the Board comprised of 10 (Ten) Directors out of which of 2 (Two) were Executive
Directors, 8 (Eight) were Non- Executives Directors including 5 (Five) Non-Executive Independent Directors.
Out of total Directors on the board 3 (Three) directors are women directors. The Company does not have a
regular non-executive chairperson, hence, 50% (Fifty Percent) of the Board members are Independent
Directors. The Composition of Board of Directors and in respect of each Director, Category of Directorship,
Number of meetings attended, Attendance at the last AGM, directorship in listed entities,
Chairmanship/membership in Audit/ Stakeholder Committee(s) including this Company including this
Company as on 315t March, 2025 are given below:

S. | Name of | Category Attendance at No. of | No. of | No. of Post of | Shareholding
No | the Directors | Member | Chairperson in the
Director Board Last AGMm | hip held | ships in Audit/ | Company

Meetings | held on | in listed Stakeholder (equity
26.09.2024 | entities Committee shares of Rs.
including held in listed | 10/- each)
this listed entities
entity including this
listed entity
1. | Mr. Vijay | Managing | 14 Yes 1 1 0 4683750
Kumar Director &
CFO
2, | Mr. Whole 14 Yes 1 0 0 10679400
Chakshu | Time
Goyal Director
3. | Mrs. Non 08 Yes 1 0 0 2866500
Neelam Executive
Rani Director
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4. | Mr. Tilak | Non 05 Yes 1 0 0 11564000
Raj Executive
Director
5. | Mr. Kapil | Non 02 No 1 2 0 0
Executive
Director
6. | Mr. Non 05 Yes 1 2 0 0
Bhupesh | Executive
Goyal Non
Independe
nt Director
7. Mr. Sumit | Non 13 Yes 1 2 1 0
Goswami | Executive
Non
Independe
nt Director
8. | Mr. Non 05 Yes 2 4 2 0
Sanjeev Executive
Kumar Non
Independe
nt Director
9. | Mrs. Non 03 No 2 0 0 0
Bhupinder | Executive
Preet Non
Kaur Independe
nt Director
10. | Mrs. Non 01 No 1 0 0 0
Ridhima Executive
Garg Non
Independe
nt Director

B. Meeting of Board of Directors

During the financial year ended 318t March, 2025, the Board of Directors met 15 (Fifteen) times. The
maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days, as
stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial

Standards. Dates on which meeting of Board of Directors were held on are given herein below:

S. No. Date of the Board Meeting S. No. Date of the Board Meeting
1. 08.05.2024 2. 14.05.2024

3. 24.06.2024 4. 10.08.2024

5. 31.08.2024 6. 05.10.2024

7. 14.10.2024 8. 22.10.2024

9. 29.10.2024 10. 12.11.2024

11. 04.12.2024 12. 07.01.2025

13. 12.02.2025 14. 18.02.2025

15. 24.03.2025

Disclosure of Relationships between Directors inter-se As on 315t March, 2025, the details of
relationships between directors were as follows:

S. No. Name of Director Name of Related Director with Relationship
1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Mr. Chakshu Goyal (Son)

Mrs. Neelam Rani (Wife)

Mrs. Prerna Goyal (Daughter-in-Law)
2. Mr. Chakshu Goyal Mr. Vijay Kumar (Father)
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Mrs. Neelam Rani (Mother)
Mrs. Prerna Goyal (Wife)

3. Mrs. Neelam Rani Mr. Vijay Kumar (Husband)
Mr. Chakshu Goyal (Son)
Mrs. Prerna Goyal (Daughter-in-Law)

4. Mr. Tilak Raj Mr. Kapil (Brother's Son)

5. Mr. Kapil Mr. Tilak Raj (Father’s Brother)
6. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal Nil

7. Mr. Sumit Goswami Nil

8. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Nil

9. Ms. Bhupinder Preet Kaur Nil

10. Mrs. Ridhima Garg Nil

D. Details and disclosure for Independent Directors

Familiarization program for Independent Directors

The Company has familiarized its Independent Directors regarding the Company and its policies, their
roles, rights and responsibilities etc. Presentations were made by senior personnel of the Company for
the Independent Directors covering nature of Industry, business model, business performance and
operations, challenges & opportunities available etc. Certain programs were merged with the
Board/Committee meetings for the convenience of the directors and some separate programs were also
conducted for them as per their requirement. The Details of Familiarization program for Independent
Directors has been disclosed on the Company’s website http://www.anmolindialtd.com.

Opinion of the Board

Pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have provided an annual confirmation that they meet the
criteria of independence, and in terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, they also have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations
received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria
of independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management.

Further, declaration on compliance with Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended by MCA’s Notification dated 22nd October 2019 regarding the
requirement relating to the enrolment in the Data Bank created by MCA for IDs, has been received from
all the Independent Directors.

Skills, expertise and competence of the Board

The Board of Directors is collectively responsible for selection of members on the Board. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company nominate candidates on the basis of well-defined
selection criteria as set out herein below:

» composition of the Board, which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its portfolio, and its
status as a listed Company;

« desired age and diversity on the Board,;

* recommend to the Board remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior

Management;

size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive and Non-

Executive Directors consistent with the requirements of law;

professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific area of relevance to the Company;

recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management;

balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;
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e availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties;

e Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing

o formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

e personal characteristics being in line with the Company’s values, such as integrity, honesty,
transparency and pioneering mindset etc.
In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills / expertise /
competencies in context of the business of the Company for effective functioning:

S. No. | Skills/ Expertise/ Competence Description

1. Industry knowledge/ Experience Knowledge or experience of Coal Sector,
Understanding of Corporate laws, international
laws, and other rules and regulations, knowledge
of industry and contract management.

2, Technical Skills/ Experience Expertise in Accounting, Finance, Marketing,
Information Technology, Strategic Management,
Legal, Compliance and Governance.

3. Behavioral Competencies Behavioral Competencies

List of skills/ expertise/ competence of each director on the Board is mentioned herein under:

S. No. | Name of Director Industry Technical Behavioral
knowledge/ Skills/ Competencies
Experience Experience
1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Y Y Y
2. Mr. Chakshu Goyal Y Y Y
3. Mrs. Neelam Rani Y Y Y
4. Mr. Tilak Raj Y Y Y
5. Mr. Kapil Y Y Y
6. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal Y Y Y
7. Mr. Sumit Goswami Y Y Y
8. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Y Y Y
9. Ms. Bhupinder Preet Kaur Y Y Y
10. Mrs. Ridhima Garg Y Y Y

Board Committees
The Board has formed the following 4 Committees:
l.  Audit Committee

As on 31st March, 2025, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises two Independent Directors and
one Executive Director namely Mr. Sanjeev Kumar, Mr. Bhupesh Goyal and Mr. Vijay Kumar
respectively. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee possess strong knowledge of accounting and financial
management. The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements
mandated by the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder and Regulation
18(3) read with Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI LODR.

During the year under review, 05 (Five) meetings of the committee were held. The maximum gap
between any two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The details of attendance at
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year are as under:;

S. No. Date of the Meeting S. No. Date of the Meeting
1. 14.05.2024 2. 10.08.2024
3. 31.08.2024 4. 12.11.2024
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| 5. | 12.02.2025 | |

Number of Meeting attended by the Members of the Audit Committee

S. Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended
No.

1. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Chairman 05

2. Mr. Vijay Kumar Member 05

3. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal Member 05

The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s
internal controls and financial reporting process and, inter-alia, performs the following functions:
i Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the

company;

ii. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit
process;

iii. Examination of the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon;

iv. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

V. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Vi. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Vii. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

viil. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

Il. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

As required under Section 178 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and as per Regulation 20 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 your Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee. Mr. Sumit
Goswami, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar and Mr. Bhupesh Goyal are the members of the committee and all are non
executive independent directors of the Company. Mr. Sumit Goswami is the chairman of the committee.

The members of Stakeholder & Relationship Committee met 04 (four) times during the year. The
composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in conformity with the Listing Regulations. The
details of attendance of members and composition are as under:

S. No. Date of the Meeting S. No. Date of the
Meeting

1. 14.05.2024 2. 10.08.2024

3. 12.11.2024 4. 12.02.2025

Number of Meeting attended by the Members of the Stakeholder’'s Relationship Committee

S. Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended
No.

1. Mr. Sumit Goswami Chairman 04

2, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Member 04

3. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal Member 04

The details w.r.t. investors’ complaints received by the company during the financial year 2024-25 are as
follows:-

a) Pending at the beginning of the year - Nil
b) Received during the year - 1
c) Disposed off during the year - 1
d) Remaining unresolved at the end of the year — Nil

The role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee, interalia, includes:-

i. Review the process and mechanism of redressal of Shareholders’ /Investor’'s grievance and suggest
measures of improving the system of redressal of Shareholders’ /Investors’ grievances.
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ii. Non-receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/dividend
warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other grievance/complaints with Company or any
officer of the Company arising out in discharge of his duties.

iii. Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note of
complaints directly received and resolved by them.

iv. Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for
prevention of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securities & Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

V. Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time by
way of resolution passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting, and
Vi. Carrying out such others function as are mandated by SEBI (LODR) Regulations or any other

regulatory enactment/directive.
lil. Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings

As required under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and as per Regulation 19 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted by
the Company and comprises three non-executive Independent Directors, Mr. Bhupesh Goyal, Mr. Sanjeev
Kumar and Mr. Sumit Goswami. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal is the Chairman of the Committee. During the year, the

Committee met 02 (Two) times. The details of attendance at the NRC meetings held during the year are as
under:

S. No. Date of the Meeting
1. 31.08.2024
2. 01.10.2024

Number of Meeting attended by the Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

S. No. | Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended
1. Mr. Bhupesh Goyal Chairman 02
2. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Member 02
3. Mr. Sumit Goswami Member 02

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, includes:-

i Identification of persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommendations to the board regarding
their appointment and removal and evaluation of every director’s performance.

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

iii. Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the
director and recommend to the board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, Key
managerial personnel and other employees.

iv. Formulating the policy to ensure that:-

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks;

c) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the company and its goals.

Performance Evaluation

The Board has prepared performance evaluation policy for evaluating performance of Individual Directors
including Chairman of the Company, Board as a whole and its Committees thereof which is available at the
website of Company at www.anmolindialltd.com. The criteria of the Board evaluation includes Board
composition, talent, experience and knowledge, presentations and discussions at the Board Meeting,
frequency of the attendance at Board Meetings, feedback and suggestions given to the management and
level of participation in the discussions etc.
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V.

The performance of Non-Independent Directors including Chairman of the Company and the Board as a
whole, after taking views of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors were evaluated by the Independent
Directors.

The evaluation of the Independent Directors were made on the basis of attendance at the Meeting of the
Board, Committee and General Meeting, knowledge about the latest developments, contribution in the
Board development processes, participation in the Meetings and events outside Board Meetings,
expression of views in best interest of the Company, assistance given in protecting the legitimate interests
of the Company, employees and investors, extending individual proficiency and experience for effective
functioning and operations of the Company, etc.

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Remuneration Policy of the Company for Directors and Senior Management is to focus
on enhancing the value of the Company by attracting and retaining Directors and Senior Management for
achieving objectives of the Company and to place the Company in leading position.

The Company’s Remuneration Policy including criteria for making payments to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Senior Personnel is available on the website of your Company at
www.anmolindialtd.com. The details of remuneration paid or payable to Executive Chairman, Managing
Director & CEO and Executive Director for the FY 2024-25 is as under:

S. Name of Director Baisc Salary
No.

1. Mr. Vijay Kumar 30,00,000 p.a.
2. Mr. Chakshu Goyal 24,00,000 p.a.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The composition of the Corporate Social Committee is in conformity with Section 135 of Companies, Act,
2013. The Committee comprises of three members Mr. Chakshu Goyal, Executive Director, Mr. Vijay
Kumar, Executive Director and Mr. Sanjeev Kumar, Non-Executive Independent Director. Mr. Chakshu
Goyal is the Chairman of the Committee. During the year under review, the Committee met 04 (Four) times.
Details are set forth below:

S. No. Date of the Meeting S. No. Date of the
Meeting

1. 05.04.2024 2. 10.08.2024

3. 12.11.2024 4. 12.02.2025

S. Name of Director Designation No. of Meetings Attended

No.

1. Mr. Chakshu Goyal Chairman 04

2, Mr. Vijay Kumar Member 04

3. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Member 04

The scope/terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility committee, inter-alia, includes:-

(a) To formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors, the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy,
indicating the corporate social responsibility activities to be undertaken;

(b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the corporate social responsibility activities;

(c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and its implementation by the company from time
to time;

(d) Any other matter as the CSR committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors
or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

4. General Body Meetings
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A. Details of the last three (3) Annual General Meetings (AGMs) held:

Financial | Date and | Venue Details of Special Resolution Passed, if any

Year Time

2021-22 | 28" Day of |2 Floor, Aggar| 1. To consider and approve Loan to Directors
September, Nagar, Block B, as per Section 185 of the Companies Act,
2022 at 10.00 | Ludhiana, Punjab- 2013
A.M. 141001 2. To consider and approve increase in the

borrowing limits upto Rs, 1000 Crores as
per Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013

3. To consider & approve the remuneration to
be paid to Mr. Tilak Raj (DIN: 00574968),
Non-Executive Director

4. To consider & approve the remuneration to
be paid to Mr. Sahil Aggarwal (DIN:
07269522), Non-Executive Director

2022-23 | 09" Day of |2 Floor, Aggar| 1. To consider and approve Reappointment

August, 2023 | Nagar, Block B, of Mr. Bhupesh Goyal (DIN: 08126023) as
at 10.00 A.M. | Ludhiana, Punjab- an Independent Director of the Company
141001
2023-24 | 26" Day of |2 Floor, Aggar| 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Chakshu Goyal as
September, Nagar, Block B, Whole Time Director of the Company for
2024 at 10.00 | Ludhiana, Punjab- further period of five years
A.M. 141001

B. Postal Ballot and Extra Ordinary General Meetings
Postal ballot of the members was held during the Financial Year 2025.

i. Ason the date of this Report, a Postal Ballot was conducted. The details of resolutions passed through
Postal Ballot are as follows:

Name of Resolution Type of No. of Votes | votes cast in Votes cast
Resolution | Polled favour against
No. of | % No. of | %
votes votes

To appoint Mr. Kapil (DIN: | Ordinary 32547077 32535558 | 99.96 | 12519 0.04
10781591) as Non-Executive | Resolution
Non Independent Director
To appoint Mrs. Ridhima | Special 32547104 32529334 | 99.95 | 17770 0.05
Garg (DIN: 10791451) as | Resolution
Non- Executive Independent
Director

ii. Details of the Person/s who conducted the Postal Ballot:
Mr. Harsh Kumar Goyal, Practicing Company Secretary of M/s Harsh Goyal & Associates, Ludhiana,
having COP No. 2802, had been appointed as the Scrutinizer for conducting the postal ballot process
(including e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner, in respect of all the aforementioned postal
ballots.

iii. Procedure for Postal Ballot:
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5.

a.

The postal ballot is conducted in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 110 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 22 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. The Shareholders are provided the facility to vote either
by physical ballot or through e-voting. The postal ballot notice is sent to shareholders in electronic form
to the email addresses registered with the depository or with the Company or with RTA (in case of
email ids are registered). For shareholders whose email IDs are not registered, physical copies of the
postal ballot notice are sent by permitted mode along with postage prepaid self-addressed business
reply envelope. The Company also publishes a notice in the newspapers in accordance with the
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company fixes a cut-off date to reckon paid-up value of equity shares registered in the name of
shareholders for the purpose of voting. Shareholders may cast their votes through e-voting during the
voting period fixed for this purpose. Alternatively, shareholders may exercise their votes through
physical ballot by sending duly completed and signed forms so as to reach the scrutinizer before a
specified date and time. After completion of scrutiny of votes, the scrutinizer submits his report to the
Chairman and the results of voting by postal ballot are announced by the Chairman or any Director of
the Company duly authorized within 48 hours of conclusion of the voting period. The results are also
displayed on the website of the Company (www.anmolindialtd.com), besides being communicated to
the Stock Exchanges, Depositories and Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. The resolutions, if
passed by the requisite majority are deemed to have been passed on the last date specified for receipt
of duly completed postal ballot forms or e-voting.

Means of Communication

Quarterly Results:

The Company has furnished Financial Results on the quarterly basis to the Stock Exchange in the format
and within the time period prescribed under the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are available at the website of the Stock Exchanges at
www.bseindia.com & www.nseindia.com and at the company’s website at www.anmolindialtd.com. The
date/s on which various periodical financial results were declared by the company during the financial year

2024-25 are as follows:

Description Date
Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter | 10.08.2024
ended 30" June, 2024

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter | 12.11.2024
ended 30" September, 2024

Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter | 12.02.2025
ended 31" December, 2024

Audited Financial Results for the quarter/ and | 17.05.2025
year ended 315 March, 2025

The Company generally/normally publishes its periodical Financial Results in Pioneer— English language
newspaper and Nawan Zamana- Regional language newspaper.

The results of the Company, official news releases and presentations to institutional investors or analysts,
if any, are hosted on the Company’s website www.anmolindialtd.com and are also displayed on the
website of the Stock, Exchanges at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com.

General Shareholder Information:

S. No. | Particulars Remarks

1. Annual General Meeting to | 26" September, 2025, Friday at 10.00 A.M. at the registered
be held-date, time and | office of the company at 2/43, 2" Floor, Block B, Aggar
venue Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab -141001

2. Financial Year 013t April, 2024- 315t March, 2025
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3. Name and Address of Stock | BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Exchange(s) at which the | Mumbai- 400001
Equity Shares are listed NSE Limited, Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051
Notes:
1.Annual Listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 has been
duly paid to the above Stock Exchanges
4, Stock Market Code BSE: 542437
NSE: ANMOL
5. In case the securities are | NA
suspended from trading, the
directors’ report shall
explain there as on thereof
6. Registrar to an issue and | Bigshare Services Private Limited
share transfer agents
7. Share transfer system All share transfer and other communications regarding share
certificates, change of address, dividends, etc. should be
addressed to the RTA.
The Company obtains, from a company secretary in practice,
half yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer
formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing
Regulations, and files a copy of the same with the Stock
Exchanges
8. Dematerialization of shares | The shares of the company are compulsorily to be traded in
and liquidity the Stock Exchanges in dematerialized form. To facilitate
trading in demat form, in India, there are two depositories i.e.
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The Company
has entered into agreement with both these depositories. As
on 31.03.2025, 100 % of the equity shares of the Company
are in dematerialized form.
9. Outstanding global | NA
depository  receipts  or
american depository
receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely
impact on equity
10. Commodity price risk or | Foreign Exchange Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the risk
foreign exchange risk and | that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
hedging activities fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
company is exposed to foreign exchange risk. The exchange
rate between the rupee and other currencies is variable and
may continue to fluctuate in future. Any unforeseen or
adverse fluctuations with respect to the unhedged exchange
rate of any foreign currency for Indian Rupees may affect our
Company’s Results of operations.
The Company uses future contracts to offset the adverse
movements in foreign exchange.
11. List of all credit ratings | NA as Company has not issued any debt instruments or any

obtained by the entity along
with any revisions thereto
during the relevant financial
year, for all debt

fixed depositor any scheme or proposal of the listed entity
involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad.
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any

instruments of such entity or
fixed
programme or any scheme
or proposal of the listed
entity involving mobilization
of funds, whether in India or
abroad.

deposit

Market price data-high, low during each month in last financial year

Month Anmol India Limited
BSE NSE
Open High Low Close Open High Low Close
Price Price Price Price Price Price Price Price
Apr 24 42.66 53.00 39.60 39.90 42.45 51.85 39.55 40.40
May 24 40.40 40.95 35.60 36.07 40.40 40.75 35.50 36.20
Jun 24 38.95 38.95 31.00 35.34 37.00 37.05 30.00 34.95
Jul 24 35.20 36.99 32.50 33.82 - - - -
Aug 24 33.82 38.49 30.10 34.29 - - - -
Sept 24 33.61 33.61 30.10 30.97 - - - -
Oct 24 31.00 37.09 29.37 31.85 37.00 37.00 29.26 31.31
Nov 24 32.39 32.55 27.00 28.55 32.00 32.34 26.80 28.81
Dec 24 28.24 30.29 24.73 25.93 28.98 30.24 24.61 25.18
Jan 25 25.99 26.89 20.00 22.23 26.25 27.00 20.00 21.95
Feb 25 23.18 23.25 15.72 16.12 22.39 23.23 15.70 16.94
Mar 25 16.10 19.38 14.04 14.34 16.35 19.19 14.02 14.65
Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2025
No. of Equity 2025 2024
Shares No. of % of No. of % of
shareholders shareholders shareholders shareholders
1-5000 24942 76.16 25903 81.22
5001-10000 3638 11.11 2974 9.32
10001- 20000 2083 6.36 1533 4.81
20001- 30000 724 2.21 518 1.62
30001- 40000 352 1.07 218 0.68
40001- 50000 267 0.82 211 0.66
50001- 100000 441 1.35 305 0.96
100001- 302 0.92 231 0.72
999999999999999
Total 32749 100.00 31893 100.00
Shareholding Pattern as on 31t March, 2025
Particulars 2025 2024
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
held shareholding held shareholding
Promoter & 32489150 57.08 32489150 57.08
Promoter Group
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2,

Public 24425000 42.92 24425000 42.92

Total 56914150 100.00 11382830 100.00

Address for Correspondence

Company Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Mrs. Parabhjot Kaur Bigshare Services Private Limited
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp.

2" Floor, 2/43, Block B Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri
Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana East, Mumbai 400059, Maharashtra.

Punjab- 141001 Tel. No. :+91-22-6263 8200

Tel. No. 0161-4503400 Fax No. :+91-22-6263 8299
csprabhjot@anmolindialtd.com investor@bigshareonline.com

Other Disclosures

A.

Disclosures on materially significant related party

The Company has not entered into any Material significant Related Party Transaction that may have
potential conflict with the interests of listed entity at large during the year. Also, in line with requirements
of the Act and Listing Regulations, your Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions which is available on the website of the Company at www.anmolindialtd.com.

A detailed note on related party transactions has been provided in the Directors’ Report. Members may
also refer to Note No 23 to the Standalone Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures.

B. Details of non- compliance

No Penalties or strictures has been imposed by any Stock Exchange, SEBI or any statutory authority, on
any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years.

C.

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to provide a framework to
promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects Stakeholders'/Directors’/Employees’
wishing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company. The policy has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.anmolindialtd.com.

No personnel in the Company had been denied access to the Audit Committee or its Chairman during
the financial year 2024-25.

Compliance with Mandatory Requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations
during the financial year 2024-25.

Confirmation and Certifications

On an annual basis, the Company obtains from each Director details of the Board and Board
Committee positions he/she occupies in other Companies, and changes, if any, regarding their
Directorships. The Company has obtained a certificate from M/s Harsh Goyal & Associates, Company
Secretaries (COP No. 2802), confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India and Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the
same forms part of this report as Annexure- B.

Disclosure on Recommendation of Committees
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G.

During the year, all recommendations of the Committees of the Board which were mandatorily required
have been accepted by the Board. There have been no instances where such recommendations have
not been considered.

Details of Fees paid to Statutory Auditor
M/s. Kanika Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 030088N) are

the Statutory Auditors of the Company. The details of total fees paid by your Company for the financial
year 2024-25 is as under:

S. No. Nature Amount

1. Statutory Audit Fees 2.25 Lacs

2. Tax Audit Fee 0.25 Lacs
Total 2.50 Lacs

Disclosures under Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The details in relation to Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is as under:

No. of Complaints filed during the Financial Year: Nil

No. of Complaints disposed off during the Financial Year: Nil

No. of Complaints pending as at end of the Financial Year: Nil

For more details, please refer point no. 32 of the Directors Report of the Company

Disclosure on compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Listing
Regulations

The Company is in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. A certificate regarding this is annexed with this report at Annexure —-B.
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Annexure- A

CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR & CFO OF THE COMPANY

I, Vijay Kumar, Managing Director of Anmol India Limited declare that all Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with ‘Code of Conduct for Board & Senior Management
Personnel’ for the year ended 315t March, 2025.

Sd/-
Place: Ludhiana Vijay Kumar
Date: 30" August, 2025 Managing Director & CFO

CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR & CFO OF THE COMPANY

I, Vijay Kumar, Managing Director of Anmol India Limited, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the
Company, hereby confirm that the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the
Management.

Sd/-
Place: Ludhiana Vijay Kumar
Dated: 30" August, 2025 Managing Director & CFO
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Annexure- B1

Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of
Anmol India Limited

We have examined relevant records of M/s Anmal India Limited (the company) for the purpose of certifying
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31t March 2025 as per
the provisions of Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule
V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedure and implementation thereof. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended
31t March 2025 as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Harsh Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Harsh Kumar Goyal
Proprietor
FCS: 3314
Date: 30" August, 2025 CP: 2802
Place: Ludhiana UDIN: F003314G001116791
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Annexure- B2

Certificate From Practising Company Secretaries

This is to certify that on the basis of documents verified by us and explanations given to us by the
Company, we hereby certify that none of the following directors on the Board of Anmol India Limited (‘the
Company’) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the
Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of
India or any other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. Director Identification Number Name of Director
1. 00574900 Vijay Kumar

2. 00574938 Neelam Rani

3. 00574962 Tilak Raj

4. 03126756 Chakshu Goyal

5. 10781591 Kapil

6. 08126023 Bhupesh Goyal

7. 08693790 Sanjeev Kumar

8. 08708023 Sumit Goswami

9. 09074080 Bhupinder Preet Kaur
10. 10791451 Ridhima Garg

This certificate is issued pursuant to Clause 10 (i) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

For Harsh Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Harsh Kumar Goyal

Proprietor

FCS: 3314

Date: 30" August, 2025 CP: 2802
Place: Ludhiana UDIN: F003314G001116756
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Form No. MR- 3

Secretarial Audit Report
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year Ended at 315t March, 2025

To,

The Members,

ANMOL INDIA LIMITED
Ludhiana

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by ANMOL INDIA LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as Company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts, statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2025
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2025 according to the provisions

of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)
(i)

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits And Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

We have also examined the compliance of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We further report that

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed

(€)

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes, wherever applicable.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For Harsh Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Harsh Kumar Goyal)

Prop.

FCS 3314

C P No.:2802

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30.08.2025

UDIN No: F003314G001116800

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as’ Annexure A’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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To

‘ANNEXURE A’

The Members,
ANMOL INDIA LIMITED
Ludhiana.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For Harsh Goyal & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Harsh Kumar Goyal)

Prop.

FCS 3314

C P No.:2802

Place: Ludhiana

Date: 30.08.2025

UDIN No: F003314G001116800
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Annexure- 3

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Economic Overview

The global economy in FY 2024-25 faced a mixed outlook, shaped by continued geopoalitical tensions,
inflationary pressures, and varying monetary policy responses across countries. While advanced
economies experienced moderated growth due to high interest rates and subdued consumer spending,
emerging markets, particularly in Asia, showed resilience supported by domestic demand and policy
support.

India remained one of the fastest-growing major economies during the year, with GDP growth estimated
at 6.8% (as per government and RBI estimates). The growth was primarily driven by strong performance
in the manufacturing and services sectors, robust infrastructure investments, and stable private
consumption. The government's focus on capital expenditure, energy security, and industrial self-reliance
through initiatives such as Atmanirbhar Bharat, PLI schemes, and energy transition programs further
supported macroeconomic stability.

Inflation, while elevated in the first half of the fiscal, moderated gradually due to monetary tightening by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and easing supply chain constraints. The average Consumer Price Index
(CPI) inflation was within the RBI's tolerance band by year-end, while the rupee remained relatively stable
against major currencies.

For the coal and energy sector, India’s sustained economic expansion translated into higher power
demand, increased industrial activity, and continued reliance on coal as a primary energy source. Despite
the long-term global shift toward renewables, coal maintained its strategic relevance in the Indian energy
mix, particularly for baseload power generation and heavy industries like steel and cement.

Going forward, India’s macroeconomic fundamentals remain strong, with a positive investment climate,
improving ease of doing business, and a strong push toward infrastructure and energy development.
However, global uncertainties, supply chain risks, and the ongoing energy transition will continue to
influence sectoral dynamics.

Indian Coal Industry Overview

Despite increasing emphasis on renewable energy, coal remains a dominant source for power generation
and industrial fuel. In FY 2024-25, the coal industry witnessed moderate growth, driven by steady
demand from the power and steel sectors. However, environmental concerns, regulatory challenges, and
logistical constraints continue to impact operations across the value chain.

Globally, coal consumption remained under pressure due to clean energy transitions and decarbonization
efforts. In contrast, India saw relatively stable demand as the economy continued its recovery post-
COVID, with increased industrial activity and energy requirements. The Government of India’s push for
coal gasification and commercialization of coal blocks under the new auction regime is expected to drive
long-term efficiency and investment.

1. Industry Snapshot

¢ Indiais the second-largest producer and consumer of coal in the world, after China.

e Coal continues to be the backbone of India's energy mix, accounting for around 55-60% of total
power generation.

e The industry supports key sectors including power, steel, cement, fertilizers, and industrial
heating.

e Despite India’s focus on renewable energy, coal demand remains resilient due to increasing
power needs and industrial growth.

39



ANMTL

2. Coal Market Trends

Production

India’s coal production reached a record-high of 998 million tonnes in FY 2023-24, an
approximate 12% increase from the prior year.

In the subsequent fiscal 2024-25, sustained momentum continued as private and captive coal
mining expanded—propelling production past the 1 billion tonne milestone.

The IEA projects continued growth, with India being one of few large producers expected to
increase output into 2026 despite soft global demand

Consumption

Domestic consumption stood at around 906 million tonnes in 2020-21, with the utility sector
consuming over 64% of that total

Electricity generation from coal surged through 2023-24, though thermal power consumption
began declining in early 2025 due to a monsoon-related moderation of demand and a rapid ramp-
up in renewables and hydro generation

In H1 of 2025, overall coal power generation dropped 2.1% year-on-year, even as industrial coal
use (notably steel sector) rose by an estimated 6%

Imports

Total coal imports in FY 2024-25 declined by approximately 8% to 169 million tonnes, compared
to FY 2023-24, saving India nearly US $7.9 billion in foreign exchange

India remains the world’s second-largest coal importer, with imported volumes historically
accounting for 20-26% of consumption—driven by needs for high-grade thermal and coking coal
for power, steel, and cement industries

Major suppliers include Australia, South Africa, Indonesia, and increasingly Russia, especially for
coking coal. India's steel sector has begun shifting imports toward Russian coking coal,
leveraging cost discounts and rupee-based payments

3. Sectoral Demand Drivers

Power Sector: Coal-fired power plants accounted for over 70% of India's electricity generation. In
periods of high demand (e.g., summer and post-monsoon), coal supplied up to 77% of total grid
power.

Steel & Cement: Continued infrastructure development under public schemes like Gati Shakti
and PM Gati Shakti Master Plan boosted demand for coking and non-coking coal.

Industrial Use: Non-power industries such as bricks, chemicals, and paper also contributed to
steady demand.

4. Policy & Regulatory Developments

Commercial Coal Mining: The auction of coal blocks under the commercial mining regime
continued, with increased participation from private players and foreign investors.

Coal Gasification & Liquefaction: The Ministry of Coal accelerated projects on Underground Coal
Gasification (UCG) and coal-to-synthetic fuels to support energy transition goals.

Sustainable Mining Practices: Enhanced focus on land reclamation, OB (overburden)
management, dust control measures, and afforestation in coal-bearing regions.

5. Logistics & Infrastructure

Rail Connectivity: Indian Railways prioritized coal rake availability, reducing transportation
bottlenecks.
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o Pit-head Plants: Growth in pit-head thermal plants helped improve efficiency and lower
transportation costs.

« Digital Initiatives: Deployment of real-time coal tracking systems and mine automation improved
supply chain visibility.

6. Outlook for FY 2025-26

e The Indian coal market is expected to maintain steady momentum, with production likely to
surpass 1.1 billion MT.

e Government support for clean coal technologies, including coal beneficiation, gasification, and
carbon capture, will shape future investment priorities.

o Despite the global energy transition, coal is expected to remain a dominant energy source for
India in the medium term, underpinned by its affordability, availability, and integration with power
infrastructure.

Conclusion

Coal will continue to be a pillar of India’s energy and industrial strategy in the near future. While the sector
embraces innovation and sustainability, it remains instrumental in securing energy access and driving
economic growth.

Business Overview

Anmol India Limited is one of India's leading importers and suppliers of coal, offering a comprehensive,
end-to-end solution for diverse coal requirements. Over the years, the Company has established a strong
reputation in coal import, commodity trading, and supply chain management, demonstrating consistent
and robust growth since its inception.

Operating across over 100 locations nationwide, Anmol has built enduring relationships with clients
through reliable services and a customer-centric approach. The company has recently undergone a
strategic transformation, adopting an integrated and optimized end-to-end supply chain model tailored to
the evolving needs of the commodity trade sector.

This holistic approach encompasses a wide array of services, supported by advanced research
capabilities and a refined global sourcing strategy. Anmol has significantly strengthened its operational
framework by streamlining key functions such as sea freight coordination, cargo handling, insurance
management, fund allocation, inland logistics, and last-mile delivery.

These enhancements form a vital part of its ongoing expansion strategy, designed to build a more agile,
efficient, and resilient system. As part of its forward-looking vision, the company is pursuing strategic
diversification — both in its product portfolio and geographic presence — to drive growth, enhance
adaptability, and strengthen its market position.

Listed on both the BSE and NSE, Anmol India Limited is deeply committed to delivering sustainable long-
term value to its shareholders. The company adheres to transparent, ethical business practices and
upholds the highest standards of corporate governance in all its operations.

Strengths and Opportunities

] Strong Distribution Network- over the years the Company has built a reliable distribution network that
can reach majority of its potential market.

] Coal remains one of the cheapest sources of energy, especially in developing economies where
affordability outweighs environmental concerns.

= Availability and trading of high-grade coal (thermal and metallurgical) gives competitive edge in the
markets.
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] Use of digital platforms and analytics to optimize sourcing, pricing, and logistics can reduce costs
and increase efficiency.

Rising power demand and industrial consumption.

Government initiatives promoting coal gasification and clean coal technologies.

Increasing private sector participation under the commercial mining regime.

Quality tested products from reputed independent agencies (like SGS, HRT etc)

As small scale manufacturing units is increasing, the market size is ever increasing.

As imported coal is washed and cheaper, more and more industries are shifting to this fuel.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

Anmol India Ltd believes that internal control is one of the key pillars of governance. It provides freedom
to the management within a structure of appropriate checks and balances. The Company has a proper
and adequate system of internal financial controls, commensurate with its size and business operation. It
ensures timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards,
safeguarding of assets against unauthorized use or disposition and compliance with all applicable
regulatory laws and Company policies. Internal Auditors of the Company review the internal financial
control systems on a regular basis for its effectiveness, and necessary changes and suggestions are duly
incorporated into the system.

The Company’s internal control environment warrants efficient conduct of operations, security of assets,
prevention and detection of frauds/ errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information.

Financial Performance Overview

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company navigated a dynamic market environment marked by
input cost pressures and pricing volatility. Total income for the year stood at ¥1,284.05 crores, compared
to %1,5614.27 crores in FY 2023-24, representing a decline of 15.20%. The reduction in income is
primarily attributable to lower offtake volumes and softened coal prices in certain segments.

Net profit after tax declined significantly by 66.55% to %6.99 crores, as against 20.90 crores in the
previous year, primarily due to increased operational costs, lower margins, and higher provisioning for
environmental compliance.

Weaknesses and Threats

Volatility in coal prices and global commaodity trends.

Environmental and regulatory risks, especially relating to emissions and land acquisition.

Challenges in logistics and availability of railway rakes.

Long-term demand uncertainty due to the global shift toward renewables.

Political instability in coal-exporting nations and shipping/logistics issues can disrupt supply

] Heavy reliance on specific sectors (e.g., power and steel) makes the industry vulnerable to sector-
specific slowdowns.

=  Constant policy changes can disrupt trade and affect profitability.

Human Resources

The Company considers its human capital to be the most important asset and treats its people with
respect and dignity in all situations. The team is a balanced mix of experience and youth which allows a
holistic approach to varied situations. Employee knowledge enrichment is a core value of the
organization, and focus has been placed on training and development of the Company's human capital.
Our endeavour is to provide a work environment where continuous learning and development takes place
to meet the changing demands and priorities of the business. The Company offers employee-friendly
policies, industry benchmarked compensation, learning and career growth opportunities, and empathetic
health and safety initiatives so that employees feel motivated to perform at their best.
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Our people have always been one of our most valued stakeholders and key differentiators.

Key Financial Ratios

Particulars

FY 25

FY 24

Remarks

Debtors
Ratio

Turnover

19.99

24.68

The debtor’s turnover ratio, also known as the accounts receivable
turnover ratio, is a financial metric that indicates how quickly a
company collects its debts from customers. While a high DTR
generally reflects efficient credit and collection processes, the
decline suggests that accounts receivable are taking longer to
convert into cash. This could be due to extended credit terms,
delayed customer payments, or a shift in the customer base or
credit policy.

Inventory  Turnover

Ratio

16.73

11.32

A higher turnover ratio suggests that inventory is being sold and
replaced more frequently, which is generally positive. This
improvement may be attributed to better demand forecasting,
streamlined inventory processes, or increased sales volume.

Interest
Ratio

Coverage

1.64

3.17

The interest coverage ratio is a financial metric that measures the
ability of companies to pay their outstanding debts. The general rule
is that the higher the ratio, the better position a company has to
repay its interest obligations; lower ratios point to greater financial
instability.

Current Ratio

1.68

1.97

The current ratio describes the relationship between the assets and
liabilities of a corporation. A greater ratio indicates that the
corporation has more assets than liabilities. The downward
movement reflects reduced buffer to meet short-term obligations.
This change may be due to increased current liabilities, reduced
current assets, or a combination of both.

Debt Equity Ratio

0.38

0.41

This reduction suggests prudent financial management and a
conservative approach to leveraging, which enhances the
company’s financial stability and creditworthiness. A lower debt-
equity ratio also reduces the burden of interest obligations, thereby
improving profitability and financial flexibility.

Operating Profit

Margin (%)

0.02

1.01

The drop in operating profit margin indicates that the company’s
operating efficiency has significantly weakened. This decline is
primarily due to higher operating costs, lower sales prices, or both. It
suggests the company is generating almost no operating profit from
its revenues, leaving little buffer for interest, taxes, or reinvestment.

Net Profit Margin (%)

0.55

1.39

The fall in net profit margin reflects reduced overall profitability,
driven by factors such as lower operating income, higher interest
costs, or increased taxes. This means the company is retaining a
much smaller portion of revenue as profit, signaling tighter margins
and lower earnings efficiency.

Return on Net
Worth%

6.47

20.79

The significant drop in Return on Net Worth indicates reduced
profitability on shareholders’ equity. This decline is primarily due to
lower net profits and possibly higher equity base without
proportional earnings growth. It suggests weaker returns for
investors and reduced efficiency in utilizing shareholders’ funds.
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Cautionary Statements

This Management Discussion & Analysis report makes forward looking statements based on certain
assumptions and expectations of future events over which Anmol India Limited exercises no control.
Anmol India Limited cannot guarantee their accuracy nor can it warrant that the same will be realized.
Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implies. There are various macroeconomic
which could impact the operations of Anmol India Limited.

By Order of Board of Director
For Anmol India Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chakshu Goyal Vijay Kumar
Whole Time Director Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 03126756 DIN: 00574900

Date: 30" August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana
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Additional Disclosure as per Schedule-V read with Regulation 34 (E) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

A. Related Party Disclosure

The Company is in Compliance with Accounting Standard (AS 18) on Related Party Disclosure. For
further details please refer Note No. 31 forming part of Financial Statements.

B. Management Discussion And Analysis
Please refer Annexure- 3 of Board's Report.

C. Corporate Governance Report

Please refer Annexure- 1 of Board's Report.

D. Declaration signed by Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer stating that the Members
of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

A declaration duly signed by Managing Director & CFO stating that the members of Board of Directors
and Senior Management Personnel have affiimed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of
Directors and Senior Management is annexed to the Corporate Governance Report. Please refer
Annexure- 2 i.e. Corporate Governance Report for more details.

E. Compliance Certificate from either the Auditors or Practicing Company Secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed with the Board’s Report.

Please refer Annexure-1 i.e. Corporate Governance Report.
F. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account

There were 1600 shares unclaimed in the year under review.

By Order of Board of Directors
For Anmol India Limited

Sd/-
Vijay Kumar
Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 00574900
Date: 30th August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report Annexure 4

1.

A brief outline of Company’s CSR policy:

Anmol India Limited is committed to conduct business in a socially, economically and environmentally
responsible and sustainable manner which enabled the creation and distribution of wealth for the
betterment of all its stakeholders, internal as well as external, through the implementation and
integration of ethical systems and sustainable management practices.

Composition of CSR Committee

S. Name of Director Designation/ Nature of | No. of meetings | No. of meetings of
No. Directorship of CSR | CSR Committee
Committees held | attended during
during the year the year

1. Mr. ChakshuGoyal Whole Time Director 3 3
2 Mr. Vijay Kumar Managing Director & CFO 3
3. Mr. Sanjeev Kumar | Independent Director 3

Web link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: www.anmolindialtd.com

Details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub- rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: NA

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub- rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off
for the financial year, if any

S. No. Financial Year Amount available for set off Amount required to be set- off
from preceding financial years | for the financial year, if any
(in Rs) (in Rs)
1. FY 2024-25 41,829/- 41,829/-

Average net profit of the Company as per section 135 (5): Rs. 24,70,75,407.20/-
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5): 49,41,508.00/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years- Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- 41,829.00/-

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 48,99,679.14/-
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
:?::::i(; :?:ar (in Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specifigd
Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
Section 135 (6) Section 135 (5)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
Transfer Fund Transfer
51,75,829.00 - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

(1 | (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) |(7) (8) 9) (100 | (1)
S. Name of | Item from | Local Location of the Proje | Amount Amount | Amount Mode Mode of Implementation
No. | the the list of | Area project ct Allocated | spentin | transferre | Implem | —thorough
project activities (Yes/ Dura | forthe the d to entatio | Implementing Agency
in No) tion Project current unspent n-—
Schedule financial | CSR District
VIl to the year (in Account (Yesl
act Rs.) for the No)
project as
per
Section
State | District Name | CSR
Registration
Number

(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

S. Name of the Item from the Local Location of the Amount spent for | Mode of Mode of
No Project list of activities | Area Project the Project (in Implementa | Implementation-
in schedule Vil (Yesl Rs.) tion - Through Implementing
to the Act No) Direct (Yes/ | Agency
State District No) Name CSR
Registration
Number
1. Gopal Gaushala Animal No State 16,00,000/- Yes - -
Society, Moga Welfare
(CSR Regn No.
CSR00043808 )
2. | Saraswati Sindhu | Upliftmentof | No State - 1,00,000/- Yes - -
Nyas, Jalandhar Society
(CSR Regn No.
CSR00018716)
3. Hare Krishna Upliftment of No State 31,000/- Yes - -
Movement, Society
Mumbai (CSR
Regn
No.CSR0000960
5)
4, Shree Raghunath Promoting Yes Local - 5,01,000/- Yes - -
Hospital, Health Care
Ludhiana (CSR
Regn
No.CSR0002639
3)
5. HS Om Parkash 5,01,000/- Yes - -
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(CSR Regn
No.CSR0002143
8)

6. | Quality Promoting No 21,00,000/- Yes -
Educational Education
Trust, Moradabad
(CSR Regn
No.CSR0006940
2)

7. | MS World Promoting No State 3,01,000/- Yes -
Renewal Trust Healthcare
(CSR Regn No.
CSR00000787)

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total Amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d-8e): 51,75,829.00/-

(g9) Excess amount for set off, if any: 41,829.00

S. No. | Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 49,41,508.00/-
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 51,75,829.00/-
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)- (i)] 2,34,321.00/-
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of -

the previous financial years, if any
(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 2,34,321.00/-

10. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

S. Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund Amount remaining to
No. | Financial transferred to in the reporting | specified under Schedule VIl as be spent in
Year unspent CSR Financial Year per Section 135 (6), if any succeeding financial
Account under (inRs.) years, (in Rs.)
section 135 (6) Name of | Amount Date of
(inRs.) the (in Rs) Transfer
Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year: NA

(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
S. Project Name of | Financial Year | Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No. ID the Project | in which | duration | amount spent on the | amount spent | the
project was allocated project in | at the end of | Project-
commenced for the | the reporting Completed
project (in | reporting Financial 1 Ongoing
Rs.) Financial Year (in Rs.)
Year (in Rs.)

11. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of Capital asset.
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12.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of capital asset created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
Capital Asset)

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per
Section 135 (5): NA

For & on behalf of Anmol India Ltd For & on behalf of Anmol India Ltd
Sd/- Sd/-

Chakshu Goyal Vijay Kumar

Chairperson of the Committee Managing Director & CFO

Date: 30" August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana
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Annexure 5

DETAILS OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION OF THE COMPANY FORF.Y. 2024-25
Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to the provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rules 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 for the year ended

31st March, 2025
S. Name of | Designation | Remuner Nature of Qualificati ons Date of The The last The Whether any such
No. the of the ati on Employmen and Comme age employm | percentag employee is a
Employee Employee Received t, whether experience of nceme nt of ent held e of relative of any
(Yearly) contractual the employee of Employ suc by the equity director or
or ment h employee shares manager of the
otherwise emp before held by Company and if so,
loye joining the name of such
e the employee director or
Company in the manager
Company
1. Vijay CFO & 30,00,000 Permanent 10th; More than | 03/04/ 1998 65 No 8.23 Husband of Mrs.
Kumar Managing 30 years of Neelam Rani and
Director Experience Father of Mr.
Chakshu Goyal
2. Chakshu Whole Time 24,00,000 Permanent MBA, B. Tech; | 01/04/2017 34 No 18.76 Son of Mr. Vijay
Goyal Director More than 5 Kumar and Mrs.
years of Neelam Rani
Experience
3. Prerna Administrati | 24,00,000 Permanent Chartered 01/01/2024 34 No NIL Wife of Mr. Chakshu
Goyal ve Head Accountant; 8 Goyal and Daughter-
years of in-law of Mr. Vijay
experience Kumar & Mrs.
Neelam Rani
4. Babu Lal Accounts & 12,00,000 Permanent Chartered 01/12/2021 | 40 Practice NIL No
Saini Finance Accountant; 12
Head years of
experience
5. Parveen Senior 9,00,000 Permanent Chartered 14/01/2025 56 Shiwalya NIL No
Kumar Accounts & Accountant; 25 Spinning
Finance years of &
Head experience Weaving
Mills Pvt
Ltd
6. Jaidev Supply chain 7,44,000 Permanent B.A; 8 years of | 26/11/2011 35 No NIL No
Singh Manager & Experience
Quality
Control
7. Nitesh Operations 7,20,000 Permanent 12th; 8 years of | 01/04/2013 34 No NIL No
Kumar Head Experience
8. Rahul Accounts 4,92.000 Permanent B.Com; 8years 01/04/2016 34 Bansal NIL No
Sharma Head of Experience Spinning
Mills Ltd
9. Manoj Accountant 3.60,000 Permanent Diploma in 15/07/2015 35 Sidhivinay NIL No
Kumar Computer ak Knots
Applications; 7 Pvt Ltd
years of
experience
10. Parabhjot Company 3,54,000 Permanent Company 10/05/2018 40 GSC Glass NIL No
Kaur Secretary Secretary; 6 Ltd
years of
Experience
Chakshu Goyal Vijay Kumar
Whole Time Director Managing Director & CFO

DIN: 03126756
Date: 30" August, 2025
Place: Ludhiana

DIN: 00574900
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Anmol India Limited
L51909PB1998PLC050300

Regd Office: 2P Floor, 2/43, Block B, Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab- 141001
Email: anmol.india.limited@amail.com

Name of Nature of Transaction Terms of Contract Amount Paid as

Related Party Advances

Chakshu Goyal | Remuneration Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Interest on unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Repayment of unsecured Loan Financial Statements
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan
Rent

Vijay Kumar Remuneration Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Interest on unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Repayment of unsecured Loan Financial Statements
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan

Tilak Raj Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL

Aggarwal Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements
Remuneration

Neelam Rani Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements

Prerna Goyal Remuneration Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Rent are disclosed in note No. 27 of the

Financial Statements

Deepika Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements

Sahil Aggarwal | Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL
Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements

Sharp Projects Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL

Pvt Lid Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements

Coal Mantra Loan Given/ Interest/ Repayment of | Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL

Private Limited Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the

Financial Statements

Offingo private Interest on unsecured Loan Details of Related Party Transactions | NIL

Limited Repayment of unsecured Loan are disclosed in note No. 27 of the
Acceptance of Unsecured Loan Financial Statements

Sd/-
Chakshu Goyal

Whole Time Director

DIN: 03126756

Date: 30" August, 2025

Place: Ludhiana

By Order of the Board

For Anmol India Limited

Sd/-
Vijay Kumar

Managing Director & CFO

DIN: 00574900
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Anmol India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Anmol India Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis of Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters
4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Key Audit Matter Auditors’ Response
Revenue Recognition Principal audit procedures
(Refer Note 2.2 (k), 17 and 18 to financial
statements) Our audit approach was a combination of test of
internal

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized | controls and substantive procedures which included
when control in goods is transferred to the | the

customer and is measured net of rebates, | following:

discounts and returns.

= Assessing the appropriateness of the

Standards on Auditing presume that there is
fraud risk with regard to revenue recognition. We
focused on this area since there is a risk that
revenue may be overstated because of fraud,
resulting due to the pressure from Management
and Board of Directors who may strive to achieve
performance targets. Also, revenue is a key
performance indicator for the Company which

revenue recognition accounting policies by
comparing with applicable IndAS;

= Evaluating the design and implementation
of key internal financial controls in relation
to revenue recognition and tested the
operating effectiveness of such controls for
a sample of transactions (using random
sampling);
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makes it susceptible to misstatement because
the timing of revenue recognition requires
exercise of judgement.

In view of the above, we have identified risk of
fraud in revenue recognition as a key audit
matter.

Performing testing by selecting samples
(using statistical sampling) of revenue
transactions recorded for the year. For such
samples, verified the underlying
documents, including invoices, good
dispatch notes, customer acceptances and
shipping documents (as applicable), to

assess whether these are recognized in the
appropriate period in which control is
transferred services are provided.

=  Performing analytical procedures on
revenue recognized during the year to
identify unusual variances.

= Testing on a sample basis (selected based
on specified risk-based criteria), specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the financial year end date to
determine whether the revenue had been
recognized in the appropriate financial
period.

= Testing sample manual journal entries for
revenue, selected based on specified risk-
based criteria to identify unusual items.

= Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures
made in accordance with the relevant
accounting standard.

Information other than Financial Statements and Auditors report thereon

5.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

6.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the IndAS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8.

10.

11.

12.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
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13.

14.

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

9

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the statement of change in equity, and the Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements, if any; - Refer Note 30 of the notes to financial
statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

15. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

for KR AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Ludhiana, 17 May 2025
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Anmol India Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Anmol
Limited (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control
with reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

for KR AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Ludhiana, 17 May 2025
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Anmol India Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company, during the year under consideration, did not own any intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management

in accordance with a programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at a reasonable interval. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records provided to us

for examination, we report that, there are no title deeds, comprising any immovable properties
of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or
specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net
carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets does not arise.

Based on information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on
or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in its financial statements does not arise.

ii (@) The physical verification of inventory have been conducted by the management at regular

(b)

intervals during the year and, in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by
management is appropriate. No discrepancies were reported during the verification process as
confirmed by the management.

During the year, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets; and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company, the
differences, if any are either not material or minor in nature.

During the year the company has provided loans in the nature of unsecured loans to the
companies including related parties.

(a) The company has provided loans whose details are as follows:

(A) Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate during the year
accordingly, the question of commenting on the aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and
guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates does not arise.

(B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is as follows:
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vi

Vii

viii

S. Details Aggregate amount Balance outstanding at
No. during the year (Amt the Balance Sheet date
in Lacs) (Amt in Lacs)
1 Share India Fincap 5300.00 1508.54 (Credit)
Private Limited
2 CDSL (Security) 0.45 0.45
3 NSDL (Security) 0.45 0.45
4 Jio Infocomm (Security) 0.03 0.03
5 HPCL Mittal Energy 15.92 15.92
Limited

b) In respect of aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were
granted are not thoroughly defined in the agreements. However, such loans granted are not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

¢) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest have not been stipulated in the agreement terms and
conditions however, such loans along with interest are repayable on demand. Such
repayments are regular, as and when required.

d) In respect of aforesaid loans, since repayment schedule is not defined in the agreement
terms and conditions we cannot comment if the amount is overdue for more than ninety days,
and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of the principal
and interest. However, repayments are regular, as and when required.

€) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records provided
to us for examination we report that there were no loans which fell due during the year and
were renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the
existing overdue loans.

f) The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records provided to
us for examination we report that in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
the company has complied provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. Further,
the company secretary has duly issued compliance certificate in this regard.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

Based on information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records
has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, GST,
Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax,
Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given
to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st March,2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount payable in
respect of Income Tax, GST, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added
Tax and Cess whichever applicable, which have not been deposited on account of any
disputes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or
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Xii

Xiii

Xiv

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement during the year

under review. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received whistle-blower
complaints during the year.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard
24 "Related Patty Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has a internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.
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The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however,
separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and
complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer note 32 E to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As at Balance Sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone

financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

for KR AGGARWAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Ludhiana, 17 May 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

(Figure in Lakhs)
Particulars Note il As At
No. 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 207.26 127.67
b) Capital work in progress - -
c) Financial Assets
i) Investments 4 319.89 287.75
d) Other non-current Assets - -
Total Non Current Assets 527.15 415.42
Current Assets
a) Inventories 5 9,473.54 5,760.93
b) Financial Assets
i) Trade Receivable 6 7,205.62 5,5643.93
if) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 13,759.64 15,010.04
c) Other Current Assets 8 4,918.60 1,509.64
Total Current Assets 35,357.40 27,824.54
TOTAL ASSETS 35,884.55 28,239.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 9 5,691.42 5,691.42
b) Other Equity
i) Retained Earnings 10A 5,055.34 4,336.46
ii) Reserves 10B - -
Total Equity 10,746.76 10,027.88
Liabilities
Non - Current Liabilties
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 11 4,082.73 4,090.05
b) Provisions 12 18.40 14.99
c) Deferred tax Liabilities (net) 13 (14.73) (11.98)
d) Other Non-Current Liabilities -
Total Non - Current Liabilities 4,086.40 4,093.06
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 14 17,878.09 4,439.58
ii) Trade Payables 15 152.12 6,355.83
iii) Other Financial Liabilities - -
b) Other Current Liabilities 16 3,021.18 3,323.61
c) Provisions -
Total Current Liabilities 21,051.39 14,119.02
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 35,884.55 28,239.96

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Information Notes 1 to 28 form integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For K R Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 17 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Anmol India Limited

Vijay Kumar
Manging Director & CFO
DIN: 00574900

Chakshu Goyal
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03126756

Prabhjot Kaur

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M. No. ACS 26715
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

((Figure in Lakhs except EPS)

S. No.

Particulars

Note For the year ended For the year ended

No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
I Revenue from Operations 17 1,27,426.09 1,50,124.27
i1 |Other Income 18 979.16 1,302.45
Il |JTOTAL INCOME (I+1I) 1,28,405.25 1,51,426.72
IV |EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock in Trade 19 1,29,168.35 1,31,772.29
G s T e 2 i @126
Employee Benefit Expense 21 146.16 130.61
Finance costs 22 1,564.62 1,320.94
Depriciation and Amortisation Expense 3 46.65 43.41
Other Expenses 23 237.11 339.03
TOTAL EXPENSES (IV) 1,27,450.28 1,48,601.75
Vv |Profiti(loss) before Tax (lll-IV) 954.97 2,824.97
VI |Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 258.95 740.43
(2) Defered Tax (2.75) (5.49)
VIl |Profit/ (loss) for the period (V-VI) 698.77 2,090.03
VIII |Other Comprehensive income(OCI)
A Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Fair value of quoted investment 22.14 19.23
B Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (3.31) (1.36)
Total Other Comprehensive Income 18.83 17.87
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIil
X (Comprising Profit/(Loss) and OCI for thz period() ) il 2,107.90
X Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 1.23 3.67
(Face value of equity share of Rs. 10/- each) Ref Note: 28.P

Significant Accounting Policies and Other Information Notes 1 to 28 form integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For K R Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 17 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Anmol India Limited

Chakshu Goyal
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03126756

Vijay Kumar
Manging Director & CFO
DIN: 00574900

Prabhjot Kaur
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M. No. ACS 26715
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

Particulars

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Current Year
31st March, 2025

(Figure in Lakhs)

Previous Year
31st March, 2024

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 954.97 2,824.96
Adjustments for :
Loss on Sales of Fixed assets - 3.60
Depreciation 46.65 43.41
Financial Costs 1,564.62 1,320.94
Interest Income (973.68) (1,064.38)
Provision for gratuity 5.35 5.41
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 1,597.91 3,133.94
Adjustments for :
Trade Receivables (1,661.69) 1,079.83
Inventories (3,712.61) 14,995.47
Other Receivables (3,408.96) 17.58
Trade Payables (6,506.14) 619.02
Cash Generated from Operations (13,691.49) 19,845.84
Direct taxes Paid (262.92) (738.47)
Net Cashflow from Operating Activities (A) (13,954.41) 19,107.37
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net of Sales) (126.24) (64.27)
Purchase of Investments (10.00) -
Interest Received 973.68 1,064.38
Net Cashflow from Investing Activities (B) 837.44 1,000.11
C. Cash Flow from Financing A ctivities
Issue proceeds of shares & Share Premium - -
Interest paid (Financial Costs) (1,564.62) (1,320.94)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Long Term Borrowings (7.32) 80.23
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Working capital Borrowings 13,438.51 (21,099.84)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) 11,866.57 (22,340.55)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
( A+B+C) ( ) q (1,250.40) (2,233.07)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Opening Balance 15,010.04 17,243.11
Closing Balance 13,759.64 15,010.04

As per our report of even date attached

For K R Aggarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal

Partner

Membership No. 539337

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Place: Ludhiana
Date: 17 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Vijay Kumar
Manging Director & CFO
DIN: 00574900

Anmol India Limited

Chakshu Goyal
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03126756

Prabhjot Kaur

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

M. No. ACS 26715
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31° March, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Anmol India Limited (“the company”) is a public and listed company incorporated in India having registered office
at 2/43, Second Floor, Aggar Nagar, B — Block, Ludhiana, Punjab — 141001, India.

The Company is primarily engaged in trading of coal and other commodities.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements
are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS’) as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented in
these financial statements.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional currency of the
Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh (C00,000), unless otherwise stated. Certain
amounts that are required to be disclosed and do not appear due to rounding-off to the nearest Lakh
(C00,00), unless otherwise stated are expressed as 0.00.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value by Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(iii) Classification of assets and liabilities

The classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current, wherever applicable, are based
on normal operating cycles of business activities of the Company, which is twelve months.

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, plant and equipment are shown at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its cost of acquisition inclusive of inward freight, import duties, and other
nonrefundable taxes or levies and any cost directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of those
items; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

b) Capital Work in Progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work in progress.
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¢) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the written down value method.
Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013 where useful life is different than those prescribed in Schedule Il. The residual values are not
more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

d) Impairment of assets

At the date of balance sheet, if there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use), an impairment loss is recognised. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable
amount and the reduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the profit or loss. The impairment loss
recognised in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of
recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the
impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

Reasonable assumptions are made by the management in estimating the value-in-use and fair value

less costs of disposal. Management has considered the indicators required for impairment testing and
estimated reliably that there is no impairment loss for the purpose of Ind AS 36 and AS 28.

¢) Finance Cost

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they
are incurred.

f) Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realizable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other directly attributable costs net of recoverable
taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

g) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably.

All known Liabilities, wherever material, are provided for and Liabilities, which are disputed, are referred
to by way of Notes on Accounts.

h) Employee Benefits Expense

Short Term Employee Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
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services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period when the employees
render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Benefit Plans
The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the
Company at the time of resignation/superannuation.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is as per actuarial valuation and
spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other
Comprehensive Income.

i) Taxes on Income

Provision is made for income tax liability estimated to arise on the results for the year at the current rate
of Tax in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred
tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

j) Foreign currencies transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of custom
clearance (as per Bill of Entry) for import of goods.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will low to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts,
considering contractually defined terms and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer which is usually when the goods are loaded in vehicle and are ready for
dispatch after clearance. No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the amount due, associated costs or the possible retum of goods.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable.
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Fixed Deposits
Fixed deposit interest is accounted as per statement/documents issued by banks inclusive of related
tax deducted at source.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the performance of agreed contractual task has
been completed.

1) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Act.

m)Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of twelve months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

n) Trade receivables

These amounts represent assets for goods and services provided by the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid by the customers of the company.

0) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share, if any.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to
consider the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as at the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date.

p) Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the single operating segment which is trading. There are no separate
reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.

q) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit
period allowed. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within twelve (12) months after the reporting period.

r) Offsetting

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset, and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it
intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

s) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ loss before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

t) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to
borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and SubsequentMeasurement: Financial Assets

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of
following:

> the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
> the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

> the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

> the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through OCI:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met:

> the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
> the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and SubsequentMeasurement: Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities.’

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or are designated
upon initial recognition as FVTPL:

Gains or Losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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2.3

24

2.5

2.6

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. The Company assesses on a forward-ooking basis the expected credit loss
associated with its assets. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified
approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance.
The application of a simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the
basis of its historical credit loss experience.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in the
next financial years.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of
the value stated if realised in the ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities is
adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

The Company has called for complete information from all the vendors during the year regarding their
status as small-scale/micro industrial undertaking however, response from most of them is still awaited
and based on information received regarding the status of the vendors there are no amounts outstanding
for more than Rs.1,00,000/- for more than 30 days.

The figures of the previous period/year have been regrouped/reclassed to make them comparable with
those of the current period/year wherever considered necessary.
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(Figure in Lakhs

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROSS BLOCK DEPRICIATION NET BLOCK
PARTICULARS Location As at Additions Sales/ As at As at For the Period | Adiustment/ As at As at As at
01-04-2024 Adjustment 31-03-2025 01-04-2024 Written Back 31-03-2025 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Building Kapurihala 28.76 0.85 - 20,61 118 265 - 3.83 25.78
Car Corolla Altis PB 09 AG 8000 Kapurthala 20.63 - - 20.63 16.00 1.45 - 17.45 3.18 4.63
Car Fortuner PB 09 AG 7000 Kapurthala 33.25 - - 33.25 25.71 2.35 - 28.06 5.19 7.54
Car Innova PB08 AJ 8200 Kapurthala 24.02 - - 24.02 15.07 2.80 - 17.87 6.15 8.95
Car Kia Saltos PB 09 AF 7000 Kapurthala 19.41 - - 19.41 10.56 277 - 13.33 6.08 8.85
Car Mercedes- Benz CH Kapurthala - 114.15 - 114.15 - 9.05 - 9.05 105.10 -
Car Yaris PB 09 AG 7500 Kapurthala 14.73 - - 14.73 10.82 1.22 - 12.04 2.69 3.91
Car Innova Crysta PB 91 R 4400 Kapurthala 20.38 - - 20.38 13.84 485 - 18.69 10.69 15.54
Computer Kapurthala 8.83 1.87 - 10.70 6.33 2.57 - 8.90 1.80 2.50
Cooler & Air Conditioner Kapurthala 10.88 - - 10.88 1.80 2.35 - 4.15 6.73 9.08
Fixture and Fitting Kapurthala 13.17 0.04 - 13.21 1.37 3.07 - 4.44 8.77 11.80
Furniture Kapurthala 5.90 - - 5.90 1.75 1.87 - 3.62 2.28 415
Generator Kapurthala 6.54 - - 6.54 1.47 2.29 3.76 2.78 5.07
Inverter & Battery Kapurthala 1.29 0.23 - 1.52 1.07 0.14 - 1.21 0.31 0.22
LED TV Kapurthala 1.79 0.93 - 2.72 0.47 1.01 - 1.48 1.24 1.32
Lift Account Kapurthala 10.59 - - 10.59 1.13 2.09 - 3.22 7.37 9.46
Locker Account Kapurthala - 0.07 - 0.07 - 0.02 - 0.02 0.05 -
Mobiles Kapurthala 11.93 2.40 - 14.33 7.48 3.00 - 10.48 3.85 4.45
Referigerator Kapurthala - 0.20 - 0.20 - 0.03 - 0.03 0.17 -
Speaker Kapurthala - 0.60 - 0.60 - 0.12 - 0.12 0.48 -
Note Counting Machine Kapurthala 0.36 - - 0.36 0.34 - - 0.34 0.02 0.02
Plant and Machinery Kapurthala 0.08 0.05 - 0.13 0.00 0.02 - 0.02 0.1 0.08
Solar Panel Alc Kapurthala - 4.84 - 4.84 - 0.01 - 0.01 4.83 -
Tea Coffee Machine Kapurthala 0.20 - - 0.20 0.01 0.05 - 0.06 0.14 0.19
Water Storage Kapurthala 0.31 - - 0.31 0.04 0.07 - 0.11 0.20 0.27
Referigerator Gandhidham 0.13 - - 0.13 0.11 0.01 - 0.12 0.01 0.02
Laptop Gandhidham 0.36 - - 0.36 0.29 0.04 0.33 0.03 0.07
Computers & Printers Gandhidham 3.43 0.01 - 3.44 325 0.00 - 3.25 0.19 0.18
Furniture Gandhidham 0.97 - - 0.97 0.79 0.08 0.87 0.10 0.18
Inverter & Battery Gandhidham 0.93 - - 0.93 0.84 0.03 0.87 0.06 0.09
Mobiles Gandhidham 3.53 - - 3.53 2.27 0.57 - 2.84 0.69 1.26
Motor Cycle Gandhidham 1.05 - - 1.05 0.79 0.07 - 0.86 0.19 0.26
TOTAL 252.45 126.24 - 378.69 124.78 46.65 - 171.43 207.26 127.67
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NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS 31_03_';;:
lInvestments carried at fair value through profit and loss:
Investment in Mutual Funds - Quoted
20,55,337.702 Units of SBI Corporate Bond Fund - Regular Plan Growth 311.68 287.75
99,995 Units of AMRG - Union Active Momentum Fund - Regular Plan Growth 8.21 -
TOTAL 319.89 287.75
Carrying Value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:
(a) Investments in quoted instruments:
Aggregate Carrying Cost 265.00 255.00
Aggregate Market Value 319.89 287.75
As at As at
NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES 31-03-2024
(As verified, valued and certified by the Management)
Closing Stock - Traded Goods 9,473.54 5,760.93
TOTAL 9,473.54 5,760.93
NOTE 6 - TRADE RECEIVABLES (Ref. Note below) 31_03_'::;:
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period not exceeding six months 6,955.78 5,452.50
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 249.84 91.43
TOTAL 7,205.62 5,543.93

Note: Company has received security amount against trade receivables which are outstanding more than 1 year as
on 31.03.2025 from del credere agents amounting to ZNIL crore and £65.00 Lakh during previous year 2023-24.

NOTE 7 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 31_03_';:;:
Cash in Hand
Cash in Hand 4.19 4.19
Imprest 0.53 0.28
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Account
Axis Bank Limited - Cash Credit Account 5.06 1,033.25
Axis Bank Limited - FDOD Account 5.52 3.25
Capital Small Finance Bank Limited - ODIP Account 1.09 0.23
HDFC Bank Limited - FDOD Account 8.44 216.93
HDFC Bank Limited - Cash Credit Account 8.09 259.90
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited - Cash Credit Account 417.94 0.90
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited - FDOD Account 16.42 6.33
South Indian Bank Limited 0.12 -
State Bank of India - Cash Credit Account - 138.36
Union Bank of India - Cash Credit Account 6.01 37.74
Union Bank of India - FDOD Account 0.71 7.41
Yes Bank Limited - Cash Credit Account 3.73 4.67
Yes Bank Limited - FDOD Account 2.64 5.87
Balance In Fixed Deposits with Banks
Balance in FDR (with maturity less than 12 months) 13,279.15 13,290.73
TOTAL 13,759.64 15,010.04
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(Figure in Lakhs)

NOTE 8 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 31_03_';;:
Advance Against Capital Goods 0.60 -
Advance CIMS Payments - 2.00
Advance to Suppliers 3,417.40 912.00
Ashwin Shanker - 3.72
Compensation Cess 257.37 239.07
CSR Advance Payment 2.34 0.42
GST Deferred Tax 30.85 0.32
Input Tax Credit (GST) 867.12 301.46
Salary Advance Paid 6.46 5.28
Security (HPCL Mittal Energy Ltd ) 15.92 15.92
Security Deposit To CDSL 0.45 0.45
Security Deposit To NSDL 0.45 0.45
Security Deposit to Reliance Jio 0.02 0.03
Unclear Cheques (1.09) 30.24
Advance Income Tax
TDS Receivable AY 2025-26 134.78
TCS Receivable AY 2025-26 444.88
579.66

Less : Provision for Income Taxes 258.95 320.71 (1.72)

TOTAL 4,918.60 1,509.64
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NOTE 9A - STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025

(Figure in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus

Issued Retained .
Capital Earnings General Securities Total Equity
Reserve Premium
As at 1st April, 2023 1,138.28 5,633.27 4.32 1,135.50 7,911.37
Issue of Share Capital 4,553.14 - - - 4,553.14
Securities Premium - - - - -
Used for Bonus Issue - (3,413.32) (4.32) (1,135.50) (4,553.14)
Dividends - - - - -
Transactions with Owners 5,691.42 2,219.95 - - 7,911.37
Profit for the Period - 2,090.03 - - 2,090.03
Less: Income Tax Adjustment for previuos year - 1.96 - - 1.96
Earlier Years Comprehensive Income Written Back - 5.29 - - 5.29
Add: Other Comprehensive Income - 19.23 - - 19.23
Total Comprehensive Income - 2,116.51 - - 2,116.51
Grand Total as at 31st March, 2024 5,691.42 4,336.46 - - 10,027.88
As at 1st April , 2024 5,691.42 4,336.46 - - 10,027.88
Issue of Share Capital - - - - -
Securities Premium - - - - -
Dividends - - - - -
Transactions with Owners 5,691.42 4,336.46 - - 10,027.88
Profit for the Period - 698.77 - - 698.77
Less: Income Tax Adjustment for previuos year - 3.97 - - 3.97
Add: Earlier Years Comprehensive Income Written Back - 1.94 - - 1.94
Add: Other Comprehensive Income - 22.14 - - 22.14
Total Comprehensive Income - 718.88 - - 718.88
Grand Total as at 31st March, 2025 5,691.42 5,055.34 - - 10,746.76
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(Figure in Lakhs, except Number(s))

As at As at

NOTE 9 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Authorised Capital
7,70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 7,700.00 7,700.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Shares
1,13,82,830 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each Fully paid up in cash 5,691.42 5,691.42
4,55,31,320 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each issued as Bonus Share
(Refer Note 9A)

TOTAL 5,691.42 5,691.42
9.1 RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES As at As at|
OUTSANDING 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
At the beginning of the year 5,69,14,150 1,13,82,830
Issued during the year - 4,55,31,320
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,69,14,150 5,69,14,150

9.2 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of Equity Share is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled
to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

9.3 Other details

a) There are No ( Previous year - No) rights, preference and restriction attaching to each class of shares including
restruction on the distribution of dividend and the repayment of capital.

b) There are nil number of shares (Previous year Nil) in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company
or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiary or associates of the holding company or the
ultimate holding company in aggregate.

c) There are nil number of shares (Previous year Nil) reserved for issue under option and contracts /commitment for the
sale of shares/ disinvetment including the terms and amounts.

d) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the balance sheet is prepared

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paidup pursuant to Nil Nil

contract(s) without payment being received in cash.

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paidup pursuant to Nil Nil

contract(s) without payment being received in cash.

Aggregate number and class of shares bought back Nil Nil

e) There are no securities (Previous year No) convertible into Equity/ Preferential Shares.

f) There are no calls unpaid (Previous year No) including calls unpaid by Directors and Officers as on balance sheet date.
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9.4 Shares in the company held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at
March 31, 2025

As at

March 31, 2024

Class of Shares/ Name of % of holding % of holding in
Shareholders No. of shares in that class of] No. of shares held that class of
held shares shares
Equity Shares with Voting rights:
Tilak Raj (Promoter) 1,15,64,000 20.32% 1,15,64,000 20.32%
Chakshu Goyal 1,06,79,400 18.76% 1,06,79,400 18.76%
Vijay Kumar (Promoter) 46,83,750 8.23% 46,83,750 8.23%
Neelam Rani (Promoter) 28,66,500 5.04% 28,66,500 5.04%
Other Shareholders 2,71,20,500 47.65% 2,71,20,500 47.65%
TOTAL 5,69,14,150 100.00% 5,69,14,150 100.00%

NOTE 10 - OTHER EQUITY

(Figure in Lakhs)

As at As at
10A. RETAINED EARNINGS 31-03-2024
Retained Earnings 5,055.34 4,336.46
Balances as per last Balance Sheet 4,336.46 5,637.59
Add: Profit for the Year 698.77 2,090.03
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 22.14 19.23
Add: Earlier Years Comprehensive Income Written Back 1.94 5.28
Less: Income Tax Adjustment for previuos year 3.97 (1.96)
Less: Reserves Transferred to Equity Share Capital converted into Bonus . 3.417.63
Shares
TOTAL 10A 5,055.34 4,336.46

As at As at

10B. RESERVES e
Reserves - -
Securities Premium Reserve - 1,135.50
Less: Reserves Transferred to Equity Share Capital converted into Bonus
Shares - 1,135.50
TOTAL 10B - -
TOTAL (10A+10B) 5,055.34 4,336.46
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(Figure in Lakhs)

NOTE 11 - BORROWINGS 31_03232‘“:
Unsecured Loan from Related Parties
Chakshu Goyal 298.00 653.14
Deepika 223.35 209.81
Kapil 509.38 -
Neelam Rani 369.50 570.91
Tilak Raj - 329.19
Vijay Kumar 1,073.84 1,401.45
Sharp Projects Private Limited - 925.55
Unsecured Loan from Others
Mahja Doaba Consultants and Finvest Limited 100.12 -
Share India Fincap Pvt Ltd 1,508.54 -
TOTAL 4,082.73 4,090.05
As at As at
NOTE 12 - PROVISIONS 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Provision for Employee Benefits 18.40 14.99
As at As at
NOTE 13 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Deferred Tax (14.73) (11.98)
NOTE 14 - BORROWINGS 31_032323':
From Banks*
State Bank of India - FDOD 672.37 -
State Bank of India - Cash Credit 1,761.02 -
Supplier Credit
State Bank of India New York (16.05.2024) - 4,439.58
South Indian Bank Ltd (01.06.25) 607.07 -
South Indian Bank Ltd (02.06.25) 849.60 -
South Indian Bank Ltd (16.04.25) 782.93 -
South Indian Bank Ltd (25.06.25) 860.22 -
South Indian Bank Ltd (26-05-2025) 782.52 -
State Bank of India Hong Kong (28.05.25) 4,312.16 -
State Bank of India Hong Kong (30.05.25) 2,130.78 -
State Bank of India London (07.04.25) 5,119.42 -
TOTAL 17,878.09 4,439.58

*The borrowing from banks are primarily secured by hypothecation of entire present and future tangible current
asset of the company and personally guaranteed by the directors other than independent directors of the

company.
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(Figure in Lakhs)

NOTE 15 - TRADE PAYABLES (Ref. Note below) 3103 _‘:z;:
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small emterprises - -
|b) Total outstanding other than micro and small enterprises 152.12 6,355.83
TOTAL 152.12 6,355.83
Against Goods against Letter of Credit - 6,350.08
Against Goods others 17.96 4.90
Total Against Goods 17.96 6,354.98
Against Expenses 134.16 0.53

Note: Management has floated MSME confirmations to all the suppliers during the year, however, response from

most of them is still awaited.

.\ A

NOTE - 16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES s 1_03_2:;:
A.Statutory Liabilities
Tax Deducted at Source 29.72 21.55
GST Payable 0.67 0.79
Tax Collected at Source 46.33 98.87
B. Salary Payable
Provision for Gratuity 21.12 20.95
Salary Unpaid 0.09 0.09
C. Advance from Parties
Shri Ganeshji Maharaj 0.01 0.01
Advance from parties 2,912.35 3,113.80
D. Other Liabilities
Audit Fees Payable 2.25 2.25
Credit Card Payment 0.64 0.06
Del Credere Security (Against Debtors more than 1 year) - 65.00
Electricity Charges Payable - 0.24
Security Money 8.00 -

TOTAL 3,021.18 3,323.61
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(Figure in Lakhs)

Current Year Current Year
NOTE 17 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS ‘;1_e0;_ﬁ
Sale of Coal & Other Traded Goods 1,27,409.35 1,50,034.22
Freight Outward 1.81 15.71
Other Operating Revenue
- Rate Difference/Quality Cut 14.93 74.34
TOTAL 1,27,426.09 1,50,124.27
NOTE 18 - OTHER INCOME C‘;q’fo';’t_:::; C‘;T_eo';;_::;:
Interest on Fixed Deposits 972.66 1,063.28
Insurance Claim - 231.95
Rebate & Discount 0.69 0.23
Interest received from Income Tax - 5.43
STCG from Mutual Funds 4.79 0.46
Other Interest 1.02 1.10
TOTAL 979.16 1,302.45

NOTE 19 - PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

Current Year

Current Year|

31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Purchases of Coal & Other Traded Goods 1,25,991.69 1,29,678.00
Less: Difference in Dollar Import Purchase 121.85 749.99
Add: Direct Expenses [As per Note (a)] 3,298.51 2,844.28
PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE 1,29,168.35 1,31,772.29
DIRECT EXPENSES (Note (a)) C‘;q’fo';:_;(:;; C‘;Tfo';:_::;;
CIMS Exp (Import) 10.00 13.00
Coal Demurrage Settlement 156.58 3.31
Customs Duty & Stamp Charges 1,310.88 2,521.30
Detention, Resealing and Weighment Charges 3.53 -
Freight Inwards 1,769.80 81.10
Ground Rent 43.58 106.13
Inspection and Analysis Services 0.02 1.79
Interest paid to Govt. 0.60 25.84
Loading, Unloading & Clearing Charges 3.31 0.13
Packing and Tarpauling Charges 0.21 34.53
Shortage - 0.01
Stevedoring Handling and Misc Port Charges - 2.71
Stock Monitoring Charges - 8.12
Storage and Wharfage Charges - 46.31
TOTAL 3,298.51 2,844.28
NOTE 20 - CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED Current Year Current Year
GOODS, STOCK IN TRADE AND WORK IN PROGRESS 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Opening Stock 5,760.93 20,756.40
Less: Closing Stock 9,473.54 5,760.93
Total Changes in In\{entory of Finished Goods, Work In (3,712.61) 14,995.47
[Progress and Stock in Trade




(Figure in Lakhs)

Current Year Current Year
NOTE 21 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES lé:nr:-ﬁ
Director's Remuneration 54.00 59.00
Bonus to Employees 0.50 0.46
Gratuity 2.93 2.72
Salary 83.53 64.80
Staff Welfare 5.20 3.63
TOTAL 146.16 130.61
NOTE 22 - FINANCE COSTS C‘;r_eo';t_::;;
Bank Charges 63.12 101.10
Bank Interest 224.85 372.17
LC Charges 73.13 98.08
Usance charge/ Remitting Charges 870.06 578.16
Other Interest 330.85 168.75
Gratuity Interest Service Cost 2.61 2.68
TOTAL 1,564.62 1,320.94
23. OTHER EXPENSES C‘;T_eo';t_::::
Advertisement and Promotion 0.52 0.82
Auditors' Remuneration - Statutory Audit 2.25 2.25
Auditors' Remuneration - Tax Audit 0.25 0.25
Car Maintenance 4.04 5.34
Cess ITC Reversed 0.04 0.93
Commission Expenses 1.29 3.52
Computer Expenses 0.47 0.80
Courier Charges 0.21 0.19
Donation under CSR 49.42 39.53
Electricity Expenses 4.09 1.58
Fees & Taxes 4.72 1.39
Fine and Penalty - 1.05
Generator Expenses - 0.05
GST Expenses 0.04 8.61
Hotel Expenses 10.03 10.01
Insurance Charges 28.33 56.97
Interest on Tax 0.13 2.51
Legal & Professional charges 48.44 84.87
MCA Expenses 0.19 49.34
Misc. Expenses 5.39 2.23
Mobile Expense 0.05 0.23
Office & Kitchen Expenses 4.42 5.40
Printing & Stationery 0.45 0.62
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets - 3.60
Rentals 26.64 15.14
Repair & Maintenance 0.73 0.20
Software Expenses 0.09 0.18
Stamp Paper Charges 17.31 -
Telephone & Internet Expenses 2.07 2.32
Tour & Traveling Expenses 24.02 38.34
Valuation Charges 0.62 0.29
Water Expense 0.18 0.02
Website Expenses 0.68 0.45
Total Other Expenses 237.11 339.03
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NOTE 24 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

Figure in Lakhs

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months- 1 More than 3 TOTAL
1- 2 years 2-3 years
months year years
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Good 6,955.78 27.05 221.89 0.90 - 7,205.62
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered doubtful _ _ _ _ _ _
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-
Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
TOTAL 6,955.78 27.05 221.89 0.90 - 7,205.62
Previous Year 2023-24 5,452.50 73.26 16.40 1.77 - 5,543.93

Note: Company has received security amount against trade receivables which are outstanding more than 1 year as on
31.03.2025 from del credere agents amounting to ENIL and 265.00 Lakh during previous year 2023-24.

NOTE 25 - TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

Payment
Particulars Total
feu Less than More than
1-2 Years 2-3 Years
year 3 Years
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 1562.12 - - - 152.12
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
TOTAL 152,12 - - - 162,12
Previous Year 2023-24 6,355.83 - - - 6,355.83

NOTE: 26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR

Letter of Credits

AS AT

31.03.2025

22,198.08

Note: Management has floated MSME confirmations to all the suppliers during the year, however, response from most of them is still awaited.

AS AT
31.03.2024

25,351.87

NOTE: 27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
(a) Disclosure of Related Parties and relationship between the parties.
1. Associates: There is no associates of the company

2. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Vijay Kumar, Managing Director
Mr. Chakshu Goyal, Whole Time Director
Mr. Tilak Raj, Director
Ms. Neelam Rani, Director
Mr. Kapil, Director from 01st October 2024

3. Relatives of the Key Management Personnel

Ms. Deepika, Relative of director of the company
Ms. Prerna Goyal, Relative of director of the company

4. Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and relative of such personnel is able to exercise significant
influence or Control.

a) CoalMantra Private Limited

b) Offingo Private Limited
¢) Anmol Fincap Limited (Formely Mahja Doaba Consultants and Finvest Limited) w.e.f. 08 February 2025

\ Mr. Vijay Kumar is director
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Coalmantra Private Limited

b) Detail of transactions entered into with related parties during the year (C in Lakh)
Nature of . Current Year Previous Year
Name of the Party Relationship | \ature of Transaction 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Remuneration 30.00 30.00
Re-imbursement of Expensg 0.38 0.45
Interest Paid on Unsecured
. Loan 85.91 85.97
Mr. Vijay Kumar KMP Repayment of Unsecured
Loan 1,401.14 2,799.60
Repayment of Unsecured
Loan through Expenses 0.15 -
Loan 996.00 2,987.00
Remuneration - 5.00
Interest Paid on Unsecured 14.13 14.61
Mr. Tilak Raj KMP Repayment of Unsecured
Loan 341.92 13.46
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan - 150.00
Remuneration 24.00 24.00
Re-imbursement of Expensg 0.24 (0.01)
Interest Paid on Unsecured 26.19 46.98
Repayment of Unsecured
Mr. Chakshu Goyal KMP Loan 1,754.53 722.00
Repayment of Unsecured
Loan through Expenses 4.42 -
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan 1,380.00 625.00
Rent Paid 12.00 7.50
Remuneration - -
Interest Paid on Unsecured - 6.59
. KMP & Relative |Repayment of Unsecured
Mr. Sahil Aggarwal pay
99 of KMP  |Loan - 106.00
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan - -
Interest Paid on Unsecured 38.04 38.44
Repayment of Unsecured
Mrs. Neelam Rani KMP Loan 235.65 34.84
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan - 30.00
Interest Paid on Unsecured 10.43 -
V. Kaoi] KMP & Relative f:ap:yment of Unsecured ) )
- fap of KMP
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan 500.00 -
Interest Paid on Unsecured 15.04 14.81
Repayment of Unsecured
Ms. Deepika Relative of KMP]Loan - 11.48
Acceptance of Unsecured
Loan - -
Ms. Prerna Goyal Relative of KMP Salary P.ayment 24.00 6.00
Rent Paid 12.00 6.00
Interest Paid on Unsecured 37.02 30.10
) ) .. |Repayment of Unsecured
Sharp Projects Private | Enterprises in || oan 2,657.87 1,000.84
Limited which Key
Management Acceptance of Unsecured
Personnel and Loan 1,699.00 1,645.00
relative of such |Interest Paid on Unsecured 0.13 -
ersonnel is
Mahja Doaba Consultants and P > _ |Repayment of Unsecured
; - able to exercise ||
Finvest Limited significant oan - -
. ﬂg Acceptance of Unsecured
influence or 1} oan 100.00 -
Control.
Commission Paid 0.26 2.27
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NOTE 28 - MISCELLANEOUS REPORTING

A. Title Deeds of Immovable Property Not held in name of the company

Title Whether title deed holder Reason for
Description of | Gross deeds is a promoter, director or | Property not being
Relevant line item in the Balance Sheet item of Carrying held in the relative # of promoter*/ | held since | held in the
property Value name of director or employee of | which date | name of the
promoter/ director company
PPE Land - - - - - -
Building - - - - - -
Investment Property Land - - - - - R
Building - - - - - -
Land
PPE retired from active use and held for disposal |Building h h - h - -
Others - - - - - -

# Relative here means relative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013
* Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013

Previous Year 2023-24: NIL

B. Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoter, directors, KMPs and the related Parties

Type of Borrower

Amount of Loan or Advance in the
nature of Loan Outstanding

Percentage to the total loans and advances in the

nature of loan

Promoter

Directors

KMPs

Related Parties

Previous Year 2023-24: NIL

C. Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

cwip Less than 1
year

More than 3

1-2 Year | 2-3 Years
Years

Total*

Projects in Progress -
Projects Temporarily Suspended -

*Total shall tally with CWIP amount in the balance sheet
Previous Year 2023-24: NIL

D. For Capital work in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to original plan

To be completed in

CWIP Less than 1
year

1-2 Year | 2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

Project -

Previous Year 2023-24: NIL

E. DISCLOSURE OF RATIOS:

PARTICULARS

CURRENT YEAR 2024-25

PREVIOUS YEAR 2023-24

(a) Current Ratio 1.68 1.97
(b) Debt Equity Ratio 0.38 0.41

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA* NA*

(d) Return on Equity Ratio 0.07 0.21

(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio 16.73 11.32
(f) Trade recievables Turnover Ratio 19.99 24.68
(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 39.70 20.73
(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio 3.55 5.32
(i) Net Profit Ratio 0.55 1.39
(j) Return on Capital Employed 17.62 29.68
(k) Return on Investment 6.50 20.84

*As no term loans are availed by the company

(Figure In LaKns;

F. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars

CURRENT YEAR 2024-25

PREVIOUS YEAR 2023-24

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 49.42 39.53
Amount of Expenditure Incurred 51.76 39.95
Shortfall at the end of the year NIL NIL
Total of previous years shortfall NIL NIL
Reasons for Shortfall NA NA

Nature of CSR Activity

Contribution towards health care & Education

Details of Related party transactions

NIL

NIL

Movement in Provision for CSR during the year

NA

NA
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G. Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988 ) and the rules made thereunder.

H. Company has taken borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
Working Capital loans from banks are primarily secured by hypothecation of entire present and future tangible current asset of the company
and personally guaranteed by a director of the company.

I. Wilful Defaulter
The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

J. Relationship with Struck off Companies
There is no struck off company associated with the company or any of the director of the company.

K. Registration of Charges
All charges, modification, and satisfaction is registered with the Registrar of companies within the statutory period.

L. Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) Rules, 2017 and has not exceeded the limit.

M. Compliance with approved scheme(s) of Arrangements
The company has not entered in any arrangement prescribed under 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

N. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Share Premium
The company has utilised borrowed funds and share premium only for the purposes for which it were obtained. No diversion of funds is made
by the comapany from any fund received from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entity(ies).

O. Details of Crypto Currency or virtual Currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.
(C in Lakh, except Number(s))

P. EARNING PER SHARE AS AT 31.03.2025 AS AT 31.03.2024

Profit After Tax 698.77 2,090.03
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5,69,14,150.00 5,69,14,150.00
Weighted average number of diluted shares 5,69,14,150.00 5,69,14,150.00
Nominal Value of ordinary Share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basing Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1.23 3.67
Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1.23 3.67

Q. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS AS AT 31.03.2025 AS AT 31.03.2024

Value of Traded Goods 47,158.96 73,090.79

R. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY AS AT 31.03.2025 AS AT 31.03.2023

Expenditure in Foreign Currency - -

For KR Aggarwal & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Anmol India Limited
Firm Registration No. 030088N

Kanika Aggarwal Vijay Kumar Chakshu Goyal
Partner Manging Director & CFO Whole Time Director
Membership No. 539337 DIN: 00574900 DIN: 03126756

UDIN: 25539337BMHBUH2270

Place: Ludhiana Prabhjot Kaur
Date: 17 May 2025 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
M. No. ACS 26715

86



ANMSL,

Attendance Slip of Annual General Meeting

27" Annual General Meeting, Friday, the 26" September, 2025 at 10.00 A.M.

Regd. FolioNo. ............/DPID ............... Client ID/Ben. A/IC ...................

No. of Shares held...................

I certify that | am a registered shareholder/ proxy for the registered shareholder of the
Company and hereby record my presence at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the
Company on Friday, the 26™" September, 2025 at 10.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of
the Company: 2/43, 2" Floor, Block B, Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab- 141001.

Member’s/ Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.



ANMOL,

Form No. MGT-11

Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L51909PB1998PLC050300
Name of the Company: Anmol India Limited
Registered office: 2/43, 2" Floor, Block B, Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab- 141001

Name of the
Member(s):Registered
address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Clint

I/ We being the member of ............, holding..... shares, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature............ool , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on 26" September, 2025 at the
registered office of the Company at 2/43, 2" Floor, Block B, Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab-
141001, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

below:

Signed this ........ day of...... , 2025
Signature of Shareholder
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Ordinary Business
1. |Adoption of the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the Financial
Year ended 315t March, 2025, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

2. |Re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj (DIN: 00574962), who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

Special Business

3. |Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for a period of five Financial Years

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company

Revenue
Affix
Stamp
of Re. 1




ANMSL,

FORM NO.MGT-12
POLLING PAPER

[Pursuant to section 109 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21 (1) (c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company : Anmol India Limited

CIN L51909PB1998PLC050300
Registered Office

Telephone : 7031127031

Website : www.anmolindialtd.com
Email anmol.india.limited@gmail.com

BALLOT PAPER

2\P Floor, 2/43, Block B, Aggar Nagar, Ludhiana, Punjab- 141001

S. No. | Particulars Details
1. Name of the First- named shareholder (In
Block Letters)
2, Postal Address
3. Registered Folio No./ *DP ID and Client ID No.
(*Applicable to investors holding shares in
dematerialized form)
4. Class of Shares Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

| hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/ Special Resolution/s enumerated below by recording
my assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:

Sr. Resolutions No. of | assent to I dissent
No. Shares the from the
held by me | resolution |resolution

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

Adoption of Financial Statements for the Financial
Year ended 315t March, 2025, the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

Re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj (DIN: 00574962), who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for a period of Five

Years

Place:

Date:

(Signature of the shareholder)
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